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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CENTURYLINK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended June 30,

Six Months Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
(Dollars in millions except per share amounts
and shares in thousands)
OPERATING REVENUES $ 4,541 4,52¢ 9,07¢ 9,03¢
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of services and products (exclusive of depteci
and amortization) 1,96: 1,87: 3,891 3,66¢
Selling, general and administrative 831 814 1,67¢ 1,632
Depreciation and amortization 1,09: 1,12: 2,20( 2,24(
Total operating expenses 3,88¢ 3,81( 7,771 7,541
OPERATING INCOME 65¢ 71E 1,30¢ 1,497
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest expense (325) (325) (65€) (647)
Other (expense) income, net (7 4 2 43
Total other income (expense) (332) (321) (654) (59¢)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 32¢ 394 654 89¢
Income tax expense 13C 12t 25€ 332
NET INCOME $ 19t 26¢ 39¢€ 567
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON
SHARE
BASIC $ 0.3¢ 0.4t 0.6¢ 0.9:
DILUTED $ 0.3¢ 0.44 0.6¢ 0.9z
DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER COMMON SHARE  § 0.5¢ 0.54 1.0¢ 1.0¢
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING
BASIC 567,91! 604,30. 571,22! 611,86.
DILUTED 569,03: 605,60: 572,24 613,33t

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgsients.




CENTURYLINK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(Dollars in millions)
NET INCOME $ 19¢ 26¢ 39¢ 567
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Items related to employee benefit plans:
Change in net actuarial loss, net of $(2), $(1()) $
and $(18) tax 3 11 6 24
Change in net prior service credit, net of $(3),,$—
$(5) and $(1) tax 5 1 8 2
Foreign currency translation adjustment and othetr,
of $—, $2, $— and $— tax 8 (5 9 (13
Other comprehensive income 16 7 23 13
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 20¢ 27¢€ 41¢ 58(

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgtsients.




ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, less allowance of $145 an&d$15
Deferred income taxes, net

Other

Total current assets
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Net property, plant and equipment
GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSETS

Goodwill

CENTURYLINK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(UNAUDITED)

Customer relationships, less accumulated amomizatf $4,174 and $3,641
Other intangible assets, less accumulated amaaizaf $1,534 and $1,401

Other

Total goodwill and other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturities of long-term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Salaries and benefits
Income and other taxes

Interest
Other

Advance billings and customer deposits
Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Deferred income taxes, net
Benefit plan obligations, net

Other

Total deferred credits and other liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 8)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock—noredeemable, $25.00 par value, authorized 2,00@shimsued ar
outstanding 7 and 7 shares

Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 1,600s01@01,600,000 shares, issued i
outstanding 571,344 and 583,637 shares

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Retained earnings

Total stockholders' equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

June 30, 2014

December 31, 2013

(Dollars in millions
and shares in thousands)

181 16¢€
1,98¢ 1,977
802 1,16¢
62¢ 597
3,59¢ 3,907
35,40« 34,30
(16,969 (15,667)
18,43t 18,64¢
20,67+ 20,67+
5,40z 5,93¢
1,67¢ 1,80:
82¢ 827
28,58 29,23
50,61 51,78
1,18¢ 78E
1,15¢ 1,111
572 65C
34z 33¢
264 277
20¢ 514
71€ 737
4,44: 4,40¢
19,77: 20,18:
4,61 4,75:
3,92¢ 4,04¢
1,26¢ 1,20¢
9,80z 10,00¢
571 584
16,67: 17,34:
(779 (802)
13£ 66
16,59¢ 17,19:
50,61 51,78




See accompanying notes to consolidated financststents.




CENTURYLINK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)

Six Months Ended June 30,

2014 2013

(Dollars in millions)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income $ 39¢ 567
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,20( 2,24(
Impairment of assets 32 —
Deferred income taxes 20¢ 307
Provision for uncollectible accounts 63 65
Gain on sale of intangible assets — 32
Net long-term debt premium amortization (22) (32
Changes in current assets and current liabilities:
Accounts receivable (72 (48)
Accounts payable 75 12:
Accrued income and other taxes (11) (11)
Other current assets and other current liabilities, (35€) (163)
Retirement benefits (102 (220)
Changes in other noncurrent assets and liabilities, 66 48
Other, net 31 12
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,50¢ 2,85¢
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment andai@#ed software (1,407 (1,410
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets or property — 75
Other, net (18 23
Net cash used in investing activities (1,419 (1,312
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt — 1,74C
Payments of long-term debt (121 (1,019
Net borrowings (payments) on credit facility 12C (77%)
Dividends paid (61€) (6617)
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 32 40
Repurchase of common stock (493 (867)
Other, net 1 —
Net cash used in financing activities (1,077 (1,54
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 13 3
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 16¢ 211
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 181 214
Supplemental cash flow information:
Income taxes (paid), net $ (23 (46)
Interest (paid) (net of capitalized interest of $2#2] $18) $ (672 (647)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.




CENTURYLINK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(UNAUDITED)

Six Months Ended June 30,

COMMON STOCK
Balance at beginning of period $
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestirincentive and benefit pla
Repurchase of common stock

Balance at end of period

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of period
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestirincentive and benefit pla
Repurchase of common stock
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdings
Share-based compensation and other, net
Dividends declared

Balance at end of period

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Balance at beginning of period
Other comprehensive income

Balance at end of period

RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of period
Net income

Dividends declared

Balance at end of period

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $

2014 2013
(Dollars in millions)

584 62€

2 2
19 (29
571 604
17,34: 19,07¢
30 38
(447) (84%)
14 (16)

42 35
(289) —
16,67 18,29:
(802) (1,709
23 13
(779 (1,689
66 1,28¢

39¢ 567
(327) (659)
13t 1,19:¢
16,59¢ 18,40(

See accompanying notes to consolidated financi&sients.




CENTURYLINK, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

Unless the context requires otherwise, referencesin this report to " CenturyLink,
consolidated subsidiaries.

we," "us' and "our" refer to CenturyLink, Inc. and its

(1) Basis of Presentation
General

We are an integrated communications company engagaarily in providing an array of communicatioservices to our residential,
business, governmental and wholesale customersc@dumunications services include local and longadise, broadband, private line
(including special access), Multiprotocol Label hing ("MPLS"), data integration, managed hostingluding cloud hosting), colocation,
Ethernet, network access, public access, wirelédsp and other ancillary services.

Our consolidated balance sheet as of December03B, 2vhich was derived from our audited consoéiddtnancial statements, and our
unaudited interim consolidated financial statem@ntwided herein have been prepared in accordaitbehve instructions for Form 10-Q.
Certain information and footnote disclosures nolyniakluded in financial statements prepared inoadance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amdraae been condensed or omitted pursuant to rutbsegulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC"); however, in our opinihe disclosures made are adequate to makeftirenation presented not misleading.
We believe that these consolidated financial statéminclude all normal recurring adjustments nemssto fairly present the results for the
interim periods. The consolidated results of openatfor the first six months of the year are netessarily indicative of the consolidated
results of operations that might be expected ferditire year. These consolidated financial statésrghould be read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements and tiresrthereto included in our Annual Report on F&O¥K for the year ended December 31,
2013.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientade our accounts and the accounts of our sigrsd over which we exercise
control. All intercompany amounts and transactiaith our consolidated subsidiaries have been eliteid.

During the second quarter of 2014, we began negmigof a sale-leaseback transaction of an offigiling and as a result of the
indicated offer price we recorded an impairmentrghaf $16 million , which is included in sellingeneral and administrative expense in our
consolidated statements of operations for the thneksix months ended June 30, 2014 . We evaltiageiddicated offer price using market
conditions and determined that it represented @ [@estimate of the fair value of the building eTiegotiations on the sale of the office
building are not final and the sales price couidl hange.

To simplify the overall presentation of our condalied financial statements, we report immateriadams attributable to noncontrolling
interests in certain of our subsidiaries as follo()sncome attributable to noncontrolling intetes other income (expense), (ii) equity
attributable to noncontrolling interests in addit paid-in capital and (iii) cash flows attribukalbo noncontrolling interests in other, net
financing activities.

We pay dividends out of retained earnings to therexwe have retained earnings on the date thdetid is declared. If the dividend is in
excess of retained earnings balance on the deoladdte, then the excess is recorded to paidpitaia

We reclassified certain prior period amounts tofaon to the current period presentation, including categorization of our revenues
and our segment expense reporting. See Note 7—3¢dnfiermation for additional information. Theseatiyes had no impact on total
revenues, total operating expenses or net incomanfpperiod.

Change in Estimates

As a result of our annual reviews to evaluate gdasonableness of the depreciable lives for ourgstppplant and equipment, effective
January 2014 , we changed the estimates of theimgrgaconomic lives of certain switch and cirauétwork equipment. These changes
resulted in a net increase in depreciation expehagproximately $20 million and $39 million foretthree and six months ended June 30,
2014 , respectively, and are expected to resutriet increase in depreciation expense of apprdglynd78 million for the year ending
December 31, 2014 . This net increase in depreci@xpense, net of tax, reduced consolidated netrie by approximately $12 million , or
$0.02 per basic and diluted common share, and $édrm or $0.04 per basic and diluted common shéor the three and six months ended
June 30, 2014 , respectively, and is expecteddceconsolidated net income by approximately $#48om, or $0.08 per basic and diluted
common share, for the year ending December 31, 2014






During the fourth quarter 2013 , we changed thinesés of the remaining economic lives of certatamgible assets, specifically, the
Sawvis trade name, which is no longer being utllidae to the previously announced trade name cHaoigeSavvis to CenturyLink
Technology Solutions ("CTS"), and certain Savvaud software, which has been replaced by cloudveoét acquired through our more recent
acquisitions. These changes resulted in a netaseri amortization expense of approximately $2Bamifor the six months ended June 30,
2014 . This net increase in amortization expensephtax, reduced consolidated net income by apprately $14 million , or $0.02 per basic
and diluted common share for the six months ended 30, 2014 . For the three months ended Jun2034,, we recognized an immaterial
amount of amortization expense on the Savvis ctmitivare. As of June 30, 2014 , the Savvis trageenand the Sawvis cloud software has
been fully amortized.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

On May 28, 2014, the Financial Accounting Stand&dard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Upd20&4-09, “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” (“ASU 2014-09" or “nevastiard”).The new standard is effective for annual and intgreriods beginning Janue
1, 2017, and early adoption is prohibited. ASU 2094may be adopted by applying the provisions efrtw standard on a retrospective basis
to the periods included in the financial statementsn a modified retrospective basis which wo@slutt in the recognition of a cumulative
effect of adopting ASU 2014-09 in the first quaé€2017. We have not yet decided which implemématnethod we will adopt.

The new standard replaces virtually all existingagally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) mvenue recognition and replaces
them with a principles-based approach for detemmgimevenue recognition using a new five step mode. core principle of ASU 2014-09 is
that an entity should recognize revenue to depitiansfer of promised goods or services to custsim an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to bétledtin exchange for those goods or services. 28W4-09 also includes new accounting
principles related to the deferral and amortizatibnontract acquisition and fulfillment costs. \6larently do not defer any contract acquisi
costs and defer contract fulfillment costs onlytaphe extent of any revenue deferred.

We are studying the new standard and starting dtuate and determine the impact the new standdrtiavie on the timing of revenue
recognition under our customer agreements andntfweiat of contract related costs that will be defdriwe cannot, however, provide any
estimate of the impact of adopting the new standattis time.




(2) Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities

As of the dates indicated below, our long-term defifuding unamortized discounts and premiums, agafollows:

Interest Rates Maturities June 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

(Dollars in millions)
CenturyLink, Inc.

Senior notes 5.000% - 7.650% 2015 - 2042 $ 7,82 7,82
Credit facility @ 2.160% - 4.250% 2017 84t 72t
Term loan 2.400% 2019 391 40z
Subsidiaries
Qwest Communications International 1fc.
Senior notes 6.125% - 8.375% 2014 - 2053 8,39- 8,39:-
Embarqg Corporation ("Embarqg")
Senior notes 7.082% - 7.995% 2016 - 2036 2,66¢ 2,66¢
First mortgage bonds 7.125% - 8.770% 2017 - 2025 232 262
Other 9.000% 2019 15C 15C
Capital lease and other obligations Various Various 553 61¢
Unamortized discounts, net (98) (78)
Total long-term debt 20,95¢ 20,96¢
Less current maturities (1,18¢) (78%)
Long-term debt, excluding current maturities $ 19,77: 20,18:

(1) The outstanding amounts of our credit faciit@redit Facility") borrowings at June 30, 2014ddecember 31, 2013 were $845 million and $725anil| respectively, with
weighted average interest rates of 2.642% and 21, #@&spectively. These amounts change on a repatis.

(2) The information presented here includes QWesporation's senior notes of $7.411 billion ande®Capital Funding, Inc.'s senior notes of $98lianias of June 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013 .

Repayment:

On April 1, 2014, a subsidiary of Embarg Corponat{tEmbarq") paid at maturity the $30 million pripal amount of its 7.46% first
mortgage bonds.

Covenants

As of June 30, 2014 , we believe we were in compkawith the provisions and covenants containemiimCredit Facility and other
material debt agreements.

(3) Severance and Leased Real Estate

Periodically, we have reductions in our workforoel dave accrued liabilities for the related sevegatosts. These workforce reductions
resulted primarily from the progression or comgletof our post-acquisition integration plans, is®ed competitive pressures, cost reduction
initiatives and reduced workload demands due tdas® of legacy revenues.

We report severance liabilities within accrued exgas and other liabilities-salaries and benefitsuinconsolidated balance sheets and
report severance expenses in cost of servicesraddqts and selling, general and administrativeeagps in our consolidated statements of
operations but, as noted in Note 7—Segment Infdomatve do not allocate these expenses to our sgigme
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We have recognized liabilities to reflect our esties of the fair values of the existing lease @itms for real estate which we have
ceased using, net of estimated sublease rentalfadualue estimates were determined using distamlicash flow methods. We recognize
expense to reflect accretion of the discountedliieds and periodically we adjust the expense whenactual subleasing experience differs
from our initial estimates. We report the curreattipn of liabilities for ceased-use real estatsts in accrued expenses and other liabilities-
other and report the noncurrent portion in defemedlits and other liabilities in our consolidatedance sheets. We report the related expens
in selling, general and administrative expenseasiinconsolidated statements of operations. At 3014 , the current and noncurrent
portions of our leased real estate accrual werendillidn and $88 million , respectively. The remiaig lease terms range from 0.6 to 11.5
years, with a weighted average of 8.6 years.

Changes in our accrued liabilities for severanqeeages and leased real estate were as follows:

Severance Real Estate
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 17 11z
Accrued to expense 51 —
Payments, net (46) (8
Reversals and adjustments — (0]
Balance at June 30, 2014 $ 22 104

(4) Employee Benefits

Net periodic (income) expense for our qualified and-qualified pension plans included the followogmponents:

Pension Plans

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(Dollars in millions)
Service cost $ 1¢ 23 39 48
Interest cost 151 13t 30z 27C
Expected return on plan assets (223) (229) (44¢) (44¥)
Recognition of prior service cost 3 1 4 2
Recognition of actuarial loss 5 20 10 40
Net periodic pension benefit income $ (45) (45) (91 (88)

Net periodic expense (income) for our post-retiretienefit plans included the following components:

Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(Dollars in millions)
Service cost $ 5 6 11 12
Interest cost 4C 35 79 70
Expected return on plan assets 8 (10) (16) (20
Recognition of prior service cost 5 — 9 —
Recognition of actuarial loss — 1 — 2
Net periodic post-retirement benefit expense $ 42 32 83 64

We report net periodic benefit (income) expenseforqualified pension, non-qualified pension andtpetirement benefit plans in cost
of services and products and selling, general dndrastrative expenses on our consolidated stateudroperations.
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(5) Earnings Per Common Share

Basic and diluted earnings per common share fothite® and six months ended June 30, 2014 and#@f8calculated as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts, shias in thousands)

Income (Numerator):

Net income $ 19: 26¢ 39¢ 567
Earnings applicable to non-vested restricted stock — — — —
Net income applicable to common stock for computing

basic earnings per common share 19¢ 26¢ 39¢ 567
Net income as adjusted for purposes of computihgedi
earnings per common share $ 19z 26¢ 39¢€ 567

Shares (Denominator):
Weighted average number of shares:

Outstanding during period 572,24( 607,75" 575,21¢ 615,13¢
Non-vested restricted stock (4,325 (3,459 (3,999 (3,276
Weighted average shares outstanding for computisgh
earnings per common share 567,91! 604,30: 571,22! 611,86:
Incremental common shares attributable to dilutive
securities:
Shares issuable under convertible securities 10 10 10 10
Shares issuable under incentive compensation plans 1,107 1,29( 1,00¢ 1,46¢
Number of shares as adjusted for purposes of contput
diluted earnings per common share 569,03: 605,60: 572,24 613,33t
Basic earnings per common share $ 0.3¢ 0.4t 0.6¢ 0.9:
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.3¢ 0.44 0.6¢ 0.92

Our calculation of diluted earnings per common slecludes shares of common stock that are issugble exercise of stock options
when the exercise price is greater than the averagket price of our common stock during the pegioeflected in the table above. Such
potentially issuable shares averaged 2.4 milliortHe three months ended June 30, 2014 and 20182.8 million and 2.4 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(6) Fair Value Disclosure

Our financial instruments consist of cash and eaghivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payatndong-term debt, excluding
capital lease obligations. Due to their shiertn nature, the carrying amounts of our cash asti equivalents, accounts receivable and acc
payable approximate their fair values.

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeired to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitglin an orderly transaction between
independent and knowledgeable parties who arengilind able to transact for an asset or liabilitthha measurement date. We use valuation
techniques that maximize the use of observabletsngod minimize the use of unobservable inputs vaetermining fair value and then we
rank the estimated values based on the relialafithe inputs used following the fair value hietareset forth by the FASB.

We determined the fair values of our long-term detmiuding the current portion, based on quotedkeizprices where available or, if
not available, based on discounted future cashsflosing current market interest rates.
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The three input levels in the hierarchy of fairummeasurements are defined by the FASB geneaflyllaws:

Input Level Description of Input
Level 1 Observable inputs such as quoted market pricestiveamarkets.
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices in active markeds are either directly or indirectly observable.
Level 3 Unobservable inputs in which little or no marketadexists.

The following table presents the carrying amounts estimated fair values of our long-term debt|wkiog capital lease and other
obligations, as well as the input level used teduine the fair values as of the dates indicatéoMoe

June 30, 2014 December 31, 2013
Input Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Level Amount Value Amount Value

(Dollars in millions)

Liabilities—Long-term debt, excluding capita
lease and other obligations 2 $ 20,40¢ 21,69: 20,345 20,41

(7) Segment Information

We report the following four segments in our coidatld financial statements: consumer, businessleshle and hosting. Each of the
segments is described further below:

« Consumer. Consists generally of providing strategic and &ygaroducts and services to residential consun@us strategic products
and services offered to these customers includémadband, wireless and video services, includingPrism™ TV services. Our
legacy services offered to these customers indlhucid and long-distance services.

» Business. Consists generally of providing strategic and tygaroducts and services to commercial, enterpgiedal and
governmental customers. Our strategic productssandces offered to these customers include ouafiline, broadband, Ethernet,
MPLS, Voice over Internet Protocol ("VolP"), andwerk management services. Our legacy serviceseagffto these customers
include local and long-distance services.

 Wholesale. Consists generally of providing strategic and tggaroducts and services to other communicatioosigers. Our strateg
products and services offered to these customemnaimly private line (including special accesgglidated internet access, digital
subscriber line ("DSL") and MPLS. Our legacy seegioffered to these customers include resale ofooat access services, the sale
of unbundled network elements ("UNEs") which allour wholesale customers the use of our networkaamabination of our
network and their own networks to provide voice dath services to their customers, long-distandesaritched access services and
other services, including billing and collectiomsees, pole and floor space rentals, and databaséces.

* Hosting. Consists primarily of providing colocation, manddesting and cloud hosting services to commereiatrprise, global,
governmental and wholesale customers.
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Our segment results are summarized below:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(Dollars in millions)

Total segment revenues $ 4,28¢ 4,27¢ 8,572 8,532
Total segment expenses 2,11¢ 2,041 4,217 3,96¢
Total segment income $ 2,17( 2,23¢ 4,35tk 4,56:
Total margin percentage 51% 52% 51% 53%
Consumer:

Revenues $ 1,50( 1,49¢ 3,00¢ 3,00t

Expenses 59¢ 574 1,182 1,12¢

Income $ 901 92C 1,827 1,88

Margin percentage 60% 62% 61% 63%
Business:

Revenues $ 1,564 1,52¢ 3,12 3,03(

Expenses 972 91z 1,93¢ 1,76¢

Income $ 592 61 1,18¢ 1,261

Margin percentage 38% 40% 38% 42%
Wholesale:

Revenues $ 86¢€ 91C 1,72¢ 1,81¢

Expenses 28¢ 301 55¢ 57¢

Income $ 58¢ 60¢ 1,16¢ 1,241

Margin percentage 67% 67% 68% 68%
Hosting:

Revenues $ 35¢ 347 71z 681

Expenses 264 254 53¢ 50z

Income $ 9 93 174 17¢

Margin percentage 26% 27% 24% 26%

During the first quarter of 2014, we adopted sevetianges with respect to the assignment of ceetgirenses to our segments. We have
restated the previously reported segment resulthéthree and six months ended June 30, 2018artfwrm to the current presentation. The
nature of the most significant changes and thée@leffect on segment expenses for the three andaiths ended June 30, 2013, are as
follows:

» The method for allocating certain shared costasamer sales and care, including bad debt exenkeredit card fees, was revis
which resulted in an increase in consumer segmarerses of $22 million and $42 million with a capending decrease in business
segment expenses for the three and six months ennhed30, 2013 , respectively; and

» Hosting segment expenses have been confornmtée te@porting of our other segments’ expenses.ifsqaly, our integration efforts
and centralization of certain administrative fuons reached the point where it has become mor¢igabio discontinue including
certain finance, information technology, legal dnuhan resources expenses in the hosting segmeioh vesulted in a decrease of
$21 million and $39 million in hosting segment enpes for the three and six months ended June 33, 2@spectively.

We categorize our products and services relateeMeEnues into the following four categories:

»  Srategic services, which include primarily broadband, private linec{uding special access which we market to whddeaad
business customers), MPLS (which is a data netwgrtéchnology that can deliver the quality of seeviequired to support real-time
voice and video service), hosting (including cldudting and managed hosting), colocation, Etheundo (including resold satellite
and our facilities-based video services), VolP ¥rdzon Wireless services;

e Legacy services, which include primarily local, long-distance, $stied access, Integrated Services Digital Netwd&ON") (which
uses regular telephone lines to support voice ovadal data applications) and traditional wide aretsvork ("WAN") services (which
allow a local communications network to link towetks in remote locations);
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« Dataintegration, which includes the sale of telecommunicationgmgent located on customers' premises and relatddgsional
services, such as network management, installatidnmaintenance of data equipment and buildingagnetary fiber-optic
broadband networks for our governmental and busioestomers; and

»  Other revenues, which consist primarily of Universal Service Furid$F") revenue and surcharges. Unlike the first¢tmrevenue
categories, other revenues are not included irsegment revenues.

Our operating revenues for our products and ses\ioasisted of the following categories:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(Dollars in millions)

Strategic services $ 2,29¢ 2,18¢ 4,57¢ 4,35(
Legacy services 1,80: 1,92: 3,632 3,87¢
Data integration 187 167 361 307
Other 258 24¢ 507 50€
Total operating revenues $ 4,541 4,52t 9,07¢ 9,03¢

During 2013, operating revenues attributable tdipos of certain bundled services were revised flegacy services to strategic servi
Specifically, the revision resulted in a reductadrevenues from legacy services of $33 million &6d millionand a corresponding increast
revenues from strategic services for the threesanthonths ended June 30, 2013, respectively.r@¥ision was in response to over-allocating
a percentage of the discounts to broadband semdvesiues and under-allocating a percentage afiieeunts to local and long-distance
services revenues under bundled services arranggmeérich resulted in strategic services revena@sgounderstated and legacy services
revenues being overstated.

During 2013, operating revenues attributable téaieiCompetitive Local Exchange Carrier ("CLEC")\dees were revised from
strategic services to legacy services. Specificttly revision resulted in a reduction of revermoenf strategic services of $10 million and $19
million and a corresponding increase in revenues flegacy services for the three and six monthe@ddne 30, 2013 , respectively. The
revision was in response to recording certain lggacvices revenues generated through CLEC seraicasgements as strategic services
revenues, which resulted in strategic servicesmase being overstated and legacy services revémileg understated.

Other operating revenues include revenues fromeusal service funds, which allow us to recover digo of our costs under federal &
state cost recovery mechanisms, and certain sgesao our customers, including billings for oujuged contributions to several USF
programs. We also generate other operating revédmuadeasing and subleasing of space in our offigiédings, warehouses and other
properties. Because we centrally manage the deswitat generate these other operating revenuedpwot allocate these revenues to any of
our four segments presented above.

We recognize revenue in our statement of operafmmsertain USF surcharges and transaction tehasate bill to our customers. Our
statement of operations also reflects the relatpérmse for the amounts we remit to the governmgenees. The total amount of such
surcharges that we included in revenue aggrega@aeimately $136 million and $121 million for thieree months ended June 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively, and approximately $267 millzowd $249 million for the six months ended June2Bd4 and 2013 , respectively. Those
USF surcharges where we record revenue are incindbeé "other" operating revenues and transa¢t@rsurcharges are included in "legacy
services" revenues. We also act as a collectiontdgecertain other USF and transaction taxeswhaare required by government agencies tc
include in our bills to customers, for which we it record any revenue or expense because we onfga pass-through agent.

Our segment revenues include all revenues fronstategic, legacy and data integration operatisrescribed in more detail above.
We assign each of our customers to a single segameiteport all of the revenues we derive from thstomer to that segment, with the
exception of hosting revenue generated from busiaed wholesale customers, which is reported amlgasegment revenues. We report our
segment expenses for our four segments as follows:

» Direct expenses, which primarily are specific expenses incurrecasrect result of providing services and prodtietsegment
customers, along with selling, general and adnriatise expenses that are directly associated witiciic segment customers or
activities; and

» Allocated expenses, which include network expenses, facilities expsrsnd other expenses such as fleet and real esfsnse
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We do not assign depreciation and amortization esg@®r impairments to our segments, as the retesteets and capital expenditures are
centrally managed and are not monitored by or teddo the chief operating decision maker ("CODM)segment. Similarly, we do not
assign to our segments severance expenses, ragtrgaxpenses and certain centrally managed adtrative functions (such as finance,
information technology, legal and human resourdesyrest expense is also excluded from segmealtsdsecause we manage our financin
a total company basis and have not allocated agsdebt to specific segments. Similarly, we exelather income (expense) from our segr
results.

The following table reconciles segment income toimeome:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(Dollars in millions)

Total segment income $ 2,17( 2,23¢ 4,35¢ 4,56:
Other operating revenues 258 24¢ 507 50¢€
Depreciation and amortization (2,099 (1,129 (2,200 (2,240
Other unassigned operating expenses (675) (64€) (1,359 (1,339
Other income (expense), net (332 (321) (654) (59¢)
Income tax expense (130 (125) (25¢) (332
Net income $ 19¢ 26¢ 39¢ 567

We do not have any single customer that provideeri@an 10% of our total operating revenues. Sukisty all of our revenues come
from customers located in the United States.

(8) Commitments and Contingencies

We are vigorously defending against all of the srattescribed below. As a matter of course, weamgared both to litigate the matters
to judgment, as well as to evaluate and consideeasonable settlement opportunities. In this Nateen we refer to a class action as
"putative" it is because a class has been alldggdhot certified in that matter. We have estalgitshccrued liabilities for the matters described
below where losses are deemed probable and redg@stinable.

PendingMatters

In William Douglas Fulghum, et al. v. Embarq Corporation, et al. , filed on December 28, 2007 in the United Statis$riat Court for the
District of Kansas, a group of retirees filed agtivie class action lawsuit challenging the decismmake certain modifications in retiree
benefits programs relating to life insurance, meldicsurance and prescription drug benefits, gdiyezéfective January 1, 2006 and January 1
2008 (which, at the time of the modifications, veapected to reduce estimated future expensesdmubject benefits by more than $300
million ). Defendants include Embarq, certain sfbenefit plans, its Employee Benefits Committee the individual plan administrator of
certain of its benefits plans. Additional defendantlude Sprint Nextel and certain of its bengliins. The Court certified a class on certain of
plaintiffs’ claims, but rejected class certificatias to other claims. On October 14, 2011 Rhlghum lawyers filed a new, related lawsuit,
Abbott et al. v. Sprint Nextel et al. In Abbott, approximately 1,500 plaintiffs allege breach ofufichry duty in connection with the changes in
retiree benefits that also are at issue inRllghum case. Thebbott plaintiffs are all members of the class that wasifoed in Fulghumon
claims for allegedly vested benefits (Counts | Hdand theAbbott claims are similar to thEulghum breach of fiduciary duty claim (Count
I1), on which theFulghum court denied class certification. The Court hagexigoroceedings iAbbott indefinitely, except for limited discovery
and motion practice as to approximately 80 of tlanfiffs. On February 14, 2013, tirlghum court dismissed the majority of the plaintiffs'
claims in that case. On July 16, 2013, Bugghum court granted plaintiffs' request to seek intertocyreview by the United States Court of
Appeals for the Tenth Circuit. Embarq and the ottefendants will defend the appeal, continue toragsly contest any remaining claims in
Fulghum and seek to have the claims in fiabott case dismissed on similar grounds. We have notiada liability for these matters because
we believe it is premature (i) to determine whetlreaccrual is warranted and (ii) if so, to det@era reasonable estimate of probable liability
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In December 2009, subsidiaries of CenturyLink fited lawsuits against subsidiaries of Sprint Nettelecover terminating access
charges for VolP traffic owed under various intengection agreements and tariffs which originallpaximated $34 million in the aggregate.
In connection with the first lawsuit, a federal dom Virginia issued a ruling in our favor, whicasulted in Sprint paying us approximately $24
million . The other lawsuit is pending in federalct in Louisiana. In that case, in early 2011 @wairt dismissed certain of CenturyLink's
claims, referred other claims to the Federal Conmipations Commission ("FCC"), and stayed the litigrat In April 2012, Sprint Nextel filed a
petition with the FCC, seeking a declaratory rulingt CenturyLink's access charges do not appiol® originated calls, and earlier this year,
CenturyLink filed a complaint with the Missouri RighService Commission to collect the portion of lemaining unpaid charges arising in
that state. We have not deferred any revenue réomgrelated to these matters.

On July 16, 2013, Comcast MO Group, Inc. ("Comqgddtd a lawsuit in Colorado state court againgtgdt Communications
International, Inc. ("Qwest"). Comcast alleges Quirsached the parties' 1998 tax sharing agreeftiEBA") when it refused to partially
indemnify Comcast for a tax liability settlementr@cast reached with the Commonwealth of Massaclsusedt dispute to which we were not a
party. Comcast seeks approximately $80 millionameges, excluding interest. Qwest and Comcastaatiepto the TSA in their capacities as
successors to the TSA's original parties, U S WHRT., a telecommunications company, and MediaOrzeifg Inc., a cable television
company, respectively. We have not accrued a tiglidr this matter because we do not believe liadiflity is probable.

On September 13, 2006, Cargill Financial Markels (FCargill") and Citibank, N.A. ("Citibank") fild a lawsuit in the District Court of
Amsterdam, the Netherlands, against Qwest, KonkekKkPN N.V., KPN Telecom B.V., and other formeficérs, employees or supervisory
board members of KPNQwest N.V. ("KPNQwest"), sorhesllom were formerly affiliated with Qwest. The lawit alleges that defendants
misrepresented KPNQwest's financial and businesditton in connection with the origination of a digfacility and wrongfully allowed
KPNQwest to borrow funds under that facility. Ptéfs allege damages of approximately €219 mill{on approximately $299 million based
on the exchange rate on June 30, 2014 ). The wélinés claim will be reduced to the degree pldiatieceive recovery from a distribution of
assets from the bankruptcy estate of KPNQwest.ekbent of such expected recovery is not yet knddmApril 25, 2012, the court issued its
judgment denying the claims asserted by Cargill @itithank in their lawsuit. Cargill and Citibankeaappealing that decision. We do
believe that liability is probable in this matter.

The terms and conditions of applicable bylaws,ifteates or articles of incorporation, agreementagplicable law may obligate Qwest
to indemnify its former directors, officers or erapées with respect to the Cargill matter descréteolve, and Qwest has been advancing lega
fees and costs to certain former directors, offi@@remployees in connection with that matter.

Several putative class actions relating to theailaton of fiber optic cable in certain rights-afiy were filed against Qwest on behalf of
landowners on various dates and in courts locat&d istates in which Qwest has such cable (Alabamizgna, California, Colorado,
Delaware, Florida, Georgia, lllinois, Indiana, lgW&nsas, Kentucky, Maryland, Massachusetts, Mamjd/innesota, Mississippi, Missouri,
Nebraska, Nevada, New Jersey, New Mexico, New YMdtth Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, PennsyibyaBouth Carolina, Tenness
Texas, Utah, Virginia, and Wisconsin.) For the npest, the complaints challenge our right to irsial fiber optic cable in railroad rights-of-
way. The complaints allege that the railroads dwenrtght-of-way as an easement that did not incthderight to permit us to install our cable
in the right-ofway without the plaintiffs' consent. In generak tomplaints seek damages on theories of trespdssmgust enrichment, as wi
as punitive damages. After previous attempts terénto a single nationwide settlement in a sirgglert proved unsuccessful, the parties
proceeded to seek court approval of settlementssiate-by-state basis. To date, the parties lemesved final approval of such settlements in
30 states. The settlement administration procaskiding claim submission and evaluation, is caritig in relation to a number of these
settlements. The parties have not yet receiveérrefiteliminary or final approval in two states wdan action is pending (Texas and
Massachusetts) and two states where actions wereedtme, but are not currently, pending (Arizamal New Mexico). We have accrued an
amount that we believe is probable for resolvirgsthmatters; however, the amount is not materialit@onsolidated financial statements.

CenturyLink and certain of its affiliates are defants in one consolidated securities and four sladdler derivative actions. The actions
are pending in federal court in the Western Distifd_ouisiana. Plaintiffs in these actions havemasly alleged, among other things, that
CenturyLink and certain of its current and form#icers and directors violated federal securit@sd and/or breached fiduciary duties owed ftc
the Company and its shareholders. Plaintiffs' camps focus on alleged material misstatements assions concerning CenturyLink's
financial condition and changes in CenturyLink'pita allocation strategy in early 2013. These aratare in preliminary phases and the
Company intends to defend against the filed actiggsrously. We have not accrued a liability foesle matters as it is premature (i) to
determine whether an accrual is warranted and 69, to determine a reasonable estimate of predatbility.
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Other Proceedings and Disputes

From time to time, we are involved in other prodaegd incidental to our business, including patefrinrgement allegations,
administrative hearings of state public utility aoissions relating primarily to our rates or sergicactions relating to employee claims, var
tax issues, environmental law issues, grievancergsabefore labor regulatory agencies, and mianebus third party tort actions. The
outcome of these other proceedings is not pred&tilmwever, based on current circumstances, watlbelieve that the ultimate resolution
of these other proceedings, after considering abkEldefenses and any insurance coverage or infleatioin rights, will have a material
adverse effect on our financial position, resufteerations or cash flows.

We are currently defending several patent infringetlawsuits asserted against us by poacticing entities. These cases have progre
to various stages and one or more may go to tritie coming 24 months if they are not otherwiselked. Where applicable, we are seeking
full or partial indemnification from our vendorsdsuppliers. As with all litigation, we are vigosiu defending these actions and, as a matter
of course, are prepared both to litigate the matejudgment, as well as to evaluate and consilieeasonable settlement opportunities.

We are aware of disputes and litigation within itdustry, including litigation against us, regaglithe proper charges to be applied
between interexchange and local exchange cardexeftain calls between mobile and wireline devittet are routed through an
interexchange carrier. Some carriers are refusim@ay these access charges and some are seekindseff past charges paid. As both an
interexchange carrier and a local exchange cawiethoth pay and assess significant amounts afltaeges in question. The outcome of these
disputes and litigation are currently not predit#alf we are required to stop assessing thesegebanr to pay refunds of any such charges, ou
financial results could be negatively affected.

(9) Other Financial Information
Other Current Assets

The following table presents details of other cat@gssets in our consolidated balance sheetstae dftes indicated below:

June 30,
2014 December 31, 2013
(Dollars in millions)
Prepaid expenses $ 284 26€
Materials, supplies and inventory 132 167
Assets held for sale 54 26
Deferred activation and installation charges 10z 94
Other 56 44
Total other current assets $ 62¢ 597

Assets held for sale includes several propertiaswie expect to sell within the next twelve montbsring the second quarter of 2014,
began discussions to sell our 700 MHz A-Block vaesl spectrum licenses, which we purchased in 2008dver placed into service. As a
result of changes in market conditions and pravaitipectrum prices, we recorded a second quarter iBfpairment charge of $14 million ,
which is included in other (expense) income, netlinconsolidated statements of operations fothhee and six months ended June 30, 2014
As of June 30, 2014 , we reclassified the remai®B@ millionof wireless spectrum assets from other intangib$ets to assets held for sale
we anticipate completing the sale of such assdtéimane year. We evaluated spectrum prices usigken conditions to determine a level 3
estimate of the fair value of the wireless spectliganses. In July 2014, we entered into a defiaifigreement to sell and assign our remainin
700 MHz A-Block wireless spectrum licenses for $3@ion in cash in the aggregate. The sale is etqbto close within one year, subject to
regulatory approval and other customary closingld@ms.
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Selected Current Liabilitie:

Current liabilities reflected in our consolidatealdnce sheets include accounts payable and othentliabilities as of the dates
indicated below:

June 30,
2014 December 31, 2013
(Dollars in millions)
Accounts payable $ 1,152 1,111
Other current liabilities:
Accrued rent $ 38 52
Legal reserves 24 278
Other 14€ 18¢
Total other current liabilities $ 20¢€ 514

Included in accounts payable at June 30, 2014 auwdmber 31, 2013 , were $84 million and $88 millioespectively, representing bc
overdrafts and $107 million and $140 million , restively, associated with capital expendituresluded in legal reserves at December 31,
2013, was $235 million related to the then teméatiettlement agreement with the trustees in thd@West Dutch bankruptcy proceeding. In
February 2014 , we paid approximately €171 miljonapproximately $235 million ) to settle this pezding.

(10) Repurchase of CenturyLink Common Stock

In February 2013, our Board of Directors authorimedo repurchase up to $2 billion of our outstagdiommon stock. During the six
months ended June 30, 2014 , we repurchased 1Bignhnshares of our outstanding common stock indpen market under our 2013
repurchase program. These shares were repurchasaa dggregate market price of $433 million ,;maserage purchase price of $31.54 per
share. The repurchased common stock has beerdrélireMay 29, 2014 , we completed the 2013 stopknehase program, repurchasing ove
the course of the program a total of 59.5 millibares on the open market at an average purchaseqb$33.63 per share.

In February 2014 , our Board of Directors authatiaenew 24 -month program to repurchase up to greggte of $1 billion of our
outstanding common stock. This new program tookotfbn May 29, 2014, immediately upon the compietibthe above-described 2013
stock repurchase program. During the three momitiec June 30, 2014 , we repurchased 1.2 mifli@res of our outstanding common stoc
the open market under our 2014 stock repurchaggrgro These shares were repurchased for an aggmgaket price of $45 million , or an
average purchase price of $37(#¥f share. The repurchased common stock has bied r&hese repurchased shares exclude sharesshat
June 30, 2014 , we had agreed to purchase undeguritgram for an aggregate market price of $6 onillior an average purchase price of
$36.09 per share, in transactions that settlegt @athe third quarter of 2014 . As of June 30,20%e had approximately $955 million
remaining available for stock repurchases unde€@iel stock repurchase program.
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(11) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The tables below summarize changes in accumuldbent comprehensive loss recorded on our consotidzdance sheets by componen
for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 :

Foreign Currency

Translation
Post-Retirement Adjustment
Pension Plans Benefit Plans and Other Total
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at March 31, 2014 $ (66€) (119 (10 (795)
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications — — 8 8
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income 5 3 — 8
Net current-period other comprehensive income 5 3 8 16
Balance at June 30, 2014 $ (667) (11€) (2 (779
Foreign Currency
Translation
Post-Retirement Adjustment
Pension Plans Benefit Plans and Other Total
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ (669) (122 (17) (802)
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications — — 9 9
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income 8 6 — 14
Net current-period other comprehensive income 8 6 9 23
Balance at June 30, 2014 $ (667) (116) 2 (779

The tables below present further information almurtreclassifications out of accumulated other cahensive loss by component for
the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 :

Affected Line Item in Consolidated Statement of
Operations or Footnote Where Additional
(Decrease) Increase Information is Presented If The Amount is not
Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 in Net Income Recognized in Net Income in Total

(Dollars in millions)
Amortization of pension & post-retirement plans

Net actuarial loss $ (5) See Note 4-Employee Benefits
Prior service cost (8) See Note 4-Employee Benefits
Total before tax (13
Income tax expense (benefit) 5 Income tax expense

Net of tax $ (8)

Affected Line Item in Consolidated Statement of
Operations or Footnote Where Additional
(Decrease) Increase Information is Presented If The Amount is not
Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 in Net Income Recognized in Net Income in Total

(Dollars in millions)
Amortization of pension & post-retirement plans

Net actuarial loss $ (10) See Note 4-Employee Benefits
Prior service cost (13) See Note 4-Employee Benefits
Total before tax (23
Income tax expense (benefit) 9 Income tax expense

Net of tax $ (14)
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The tables below summarize changes in accumuldlent comprehensive loss recorded on our consotidzdéance sheets by componen

for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 :

Balance at March 31, 2013

Other comprehensive income before reclassifications

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income

Net current-period other comprehensive income

Balance at June 30, 2013

Balance at December 31, 2012

Other comprehensive income before reclassifications

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income

Net current-period other comprehensive income

Balance at June 30, 2013

Pension Plans

Foreign Currency

Translation
Post-Retirement Adjustment
Benefit Plans and Other Total

(Dollars in millions)

(1,386) (28¢€) (21) (1,695
— — (6) (6)
12 — 1 13
12 — (5) 7
(1,379 (28¢€) (26) (1,689
Foreign Currency
Translation
Post-Retirement Adjustment
Pension Plans Benefit Plans and Other Total

(Dollars in millions)

(1,399 (28¢9) (13) (1,709
— — (14) (14)
25 1 1 27
25 1 (13) 13
(1,379 (28¢) (26) (1,689

The tables below present further information almurtreclassifications out of accumulated other cahensive loss by component for

the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 :

Three Months Ended June 30, 2013

(Decrease) Increase
in Net Income

Affected Line Item in Consolidated Statement of
Operations or Footnote Where Additional
Information is Presented If The Amount is not
Recognized in Net Income in Total

Amortization of pension & post-retirement plans
Net actuarial loss
Prior service cost
Total before tax
Income tax expense (benefit)
Insignificant items

Net of tax

Six Months Ended June 30, 2013

(Dollars in millions)

(21)
@

(22)
10
)

(13

(Decrease) Increase
in Net Income

See Note 4-Employee Benefits
See Note 4-Employee Benefits

Income tax expense

Affected Line Item in Consolidated Statement of
Operations or Footnote Where Additional
Information is Presented If The Amount is not
Recognized in Net Income in Total

Amortization of pension & post-retirement plans
Net actuarial loss
Prior service cost
Total before tax
Income tax expense (benefit)
Insignificant items

Net of tax

(Dollars in millions)

(42)
@

(44)
18
)

(27)
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Unless the context requires otherwise, references in this report to "CenturyLink," "we," "us" and "our" refer to CenturyLink, Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries.

All referencesto "Notes' in this Item 2 refer to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Satements included in Item 1 of Part | of thisreport.

Certain statements in this report constitute fodalaoking statements. See the last paragraph siténin 2 and "Risk Factors" in Item 1A
of Part Il of this report for a discussion of cértéactors that could cause our actual resultsfferdrom our anticipated results or otherwise
impact our business, financial condition, resuftsgerations, liquidity or prospects.

Overview

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finanamaddtion and Results of Operations ("MD&A") inclutlberein should be read in
conjunction with MD&A and the other information ionded in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for theiyeaded December 31, 2013 , and
with the consolidated financial statements andeelaotes in Item 1 of Part | of this report. Theults of operations for the first six months of
the year are not necessarily indicative of theltesii operations that might be expected for thireyear.

We are an integrated communications company engagaarily in providing an array of communicatioservices to our residential,
business, governmental and wholesale customersc@dumunications services include local and longadise, broadband, private line
(including special access), Multi-Protocol Labelighing ("MPLS"), data integration, managed hostfimgluding cloud hosting), colocation,
Ethernet, network access, public access, wirelédsp and other ancillary services. We strive tontaan our customer relationships by, ame
other things, bundling our service offerings toypde our customers with a complete offering of gneted communications services.

At June 30, 2014 , we operated 12.7 million actiass in 37 states, served approximately 6.1 amllbroadband subscribers, and
operated 57 data centers throughout North AmeEaegpe and Asia. Access lines are telephone liea&shing from the customers' premises tc
a connection with the public switched telephonewoet. Our methodology for counting our broadbanidssuibers and access lines includes
only those access lines that we use to provideceesto external customers and excludes lines ssiety by us and our affiliates. It also
excludes unbundled loops and includes stand-alovedband subscribers. We count access lines whenstadl the service. Our methodology
for counting access lines, subscriber lines and daters may not be comparable to those of othrepanies.

We report the following four segments in our coidated financial statements:

» Consumer. Consists generally of providing strategic and lggamducts and services to residential consumeus s@ategic products
and services offered to these customers includdmadband, wireless and video services, includingPrism TV services. Our
legacy services offered to these customers indhucid and long-distance services.

* Business. Consists generally of providing strategic and lggamoducts and services to commercial, enterpgiedal and government
customers. Our strategic products and serviceseanff® these customers include our private lineatfbband, Ethernet, MPLS, Voice
over Internet Protocol ("VolIP"), and network managat services. Our legacy services offered to thaseomers include local and
long-distance services.

» Wholesale. Consists generally of providing strategic and lggamducts and services to other communicationsigeos. Our strategic
products and services offered to these customemnaimly private line (including special accesgglidated internet access, digital
subscriber line ("DSL") and MPLS. Our legacy seegioffered to these customers include the resalardbcal access services, the
sale of unbundled network elements ("UNEs") whikbvaour wholesale customers to use our networt combination of our
network and their own networks to provide voice dath services to their customers, long-distandesaritched access services and
other services, including billing and collectiomsees, pole and floor space rentals, and databaséces.

* Hosting. Consists primarily of providing colocation, manadexsting and cloud hosting services to commereiaterprise, global,
governmental and wholesale customers.
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Our segment information does not include capitpleexiitures, total assets, or certain revenues gpehses that we manage on a
centralized basis and are reviewed by our chiefaijppg decision maker ("CODM") only on a consolethbasis. Our segment results are not
necessarily indicative of the results of operatithrag our segments would have achieved had theratgzbas stand-alone entities during the
periods presented. For additional information almautsegments, see Note 7—Segment Informationteansolidated financial statements in
Item 1 of Part | of this report and "Results of Ggimns—Segment Results" below.

Results of Operations

The following table summarizes the results of aansolidated operations for the three and six moatiteed June 30, 2014 and 2013 :

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(Dollars in millions except per share amounts)
Operating revenues $ 4,541 4,52¢ 9,07¢ 9,03¢
Operating expenses 3,88¢ 3,81( 7,771 7,541
Operating income 655 71t 1,30¢ 1,49
Other income (expense), net (332 (321 (654) (59¢)
Income tax expense 13C 12¢ 25¢ 332
Net income $ 19: 26¢ 39¢€ 567
Basic earnings per common share $ 0.34 0.4t 0.6¢ 0.9z
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.34 0.44 0.6¢ 0.92

The following table summarizes our broadband suibsis, access lines, data centers and number dbgegs as of June 30, 2014 and
2013:

As of June 30,
Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change

(in thousands except for data centers, which are aal amounts)
Operational metrics:

Total broadband subscribéfs 6,05¢ 5,90¢ 14€ 2E%
Total access line¥ 12,707 13,33: (624) (4.7%
Total data centerd 57 55 2 3.6%
Total employees 45.t 46.¢ (1.9 (3.0%

(1) Broadband subscribers are customers that psechigh-speed Internet connection service thrthagih existing telephone lines and fiber-optic esblnd access lines
are lines reaching from the customers' premisascunnection with the public network.

(2) Data centers are located throughout North AmeEcaope and Asi.

During the last several years, we have experieneezhue decline (excluding the impact of acquis#joprimarily due to declines in
access lines, intrastate access rates and minfutisg.oTo mitigate these declines, we remain fodwseefforts to, among other things:

» promote longerm relationships with our customers through bimgdbf integrated service

« provide new services, such as video, cloud hgsthanaged hosting, colocation and other additesaices that may become
available in the future due to, among other thimgls;ances in technology or improvements in ouastfucture;

» provide our broadband and premium services to laghigercentage of our custom
* pursue acquisitions of additional assets if avégla attractive price

* increase prices on our products and services ifsdreh practicabl
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e increase usage of our networks;

» market our products and services to new custo

Operating Revenues

We categorize our products, services and revermes@the following four categories:

e Strategic services, which include primarily broadband, private linec{uding special access, which we market to whadéeand

business customers), MPLS (which is a data netwgrtéchnology that can deliver the quality of seeviequired to support real-time

voice and video service), hosting (including cldws$ting and managed hosting), colocation, Etheuig¢o (including our facilities-
based video services, which we now offer in tweharkets, and our resold satellite service), VoIl& darizon Wireless services;

* Legacy services, which include primarily local, long-distance, sofied access, Integrated Services Digital Netwd&ON") (which
uses regular telephone lines to support voice ovadel data applications), and traditional wide awetavork ("WAN") services (which
allow a local communications network to link towetks in remote locations);

» Dataintegration, which includes the sale of telecommunications@gent located on customers' premises and relatfdgsional
services, such as network management, installatidrmaintenance of data equipment and buildingagnietary fiber-optic
broadband networks for our governmental and busioestomers; and

»  Other revenues, which consists primarily of USF revenue and surghar Unlike the first three revenue categoriesrothvenues are

not included in our segment revenues.

The following tables summarize operating revenueteun our revenue categorization:

Strategic services
Legacy services
Data integration
Other

Total operating revenues

Strategic services
Legacy services
Data integration
Other

Total operating revenues

Three Months Ended June 30,

Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
2,29¢ 2,18¢ 112 5%
1,80: 1,927 (120) (6)%
187 167 2C 12%
25% 24¢ 4 2%
4,541 4,52¢ 1€ — 0
Six Months Ended June 30, Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
4,57¢ 4,35( 22¢ 5%
3,63: 3,87¢ (247) (6)%
361 307 54 18%
507 50¢€ 1 — %
9,07¢ 9,03¢ 41 o
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Our operating revenues increased by $16 million®&idmillion , or less than 1%, during the thred aix months ended June 30, 2@k4
compared to the three and six months ended Jur202G,. The increase in operating revenues is pilyr@due to growth in our strategic
services revenues and data integration revenuashwiere partially offset by declines in legacywsegs revenues compared to the prior year.
During 2013, operating revenues attributable téatebundled and Competitive Local Exchange Caf(liéLEC") services were revised, wh
resulted in a net increase to strategic servicemees of $23 million and $45 million , and a copa@®ding net reduction to legacy services
revenues of $23 million and $45 million for theglrand six months ended June 30, 2013 , respgctial additional information on the
revisions to certain bundled and CLEC servicesNsse 7—Segment Information to our consolidatedifitial statements in Iltem 1 of Part | of
this report. The growth in our strategic serviagenues is primarily due to increases in broadbatiigrnet, MPLS, facilities-based video,
managed hosting and colocation services, which alagbtly offset by declines in private line (indimg special access) services. The increas
in data integration revenues, which are typicallyrenvolatile than several of our other sourceswénue, is primarily due to higher sales of
customer premise equipment to governmental andhbessicustomers during the period. The decreasgaty services revenues is attributable
to declining local and long-distance and accesaaaEs which reflect the continuing loss of accéssd and loss of access revenues associate
with internet and wireless substitution in our meask At June 30, 2014 , we had approximately 12lifom access lines, or approximately
4.7% less than the number of access lines we aukaatlune 30, 2013 . We believe the decline imtimber of access lines was primarily due
to the displacement of traditional wireline telepbervices by other competitive products and sesviWe estimate that the rate of our acces
lines losses will be between 4.4% and 5.0% ovefutgear of 2014. Other operating revenues inseekfor the three and six months ended
June 30, 2014 as compared to the three and siximended June 30, 2013 primarily due to highermees related to an increased universal
service fund contribution factor, which were subgtlly offset by lower revenues from intrastatévensal service funds.

Further analysis of our operating revenues by segmerovided below in "Segment Results."
Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased by $76 millen2% , for the three months ended June 30, 28 bbmpared to the three months
ended June 30, 2013 and operating expenses indrea$230 million , or 3% , for the six months eddeine 30, 2014 as compared to the six
months ended June 30, 2013 .

The following tables summarize our operating expsns

Three Months Ended June 30,
Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change

(Dollars in millions)
Cost of services and products (exclusive of depteci

and amortization) $ 1,96 1,87: 8¢ 5%
Selling, general and administrative 831 814 17 2%
Depreciation and amortization 1,09: 1,12: (30) (3)%
Total operating expenses $ 3,88¢ 3,81( 7€ 2%

Six Months Ended June 30,
Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change

(Dollars in millions)

Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptexi

and amortization) $ 3,891 3,66¢ 22¢ 6 %
Selling, general and administrative 1,67¢ 1,63 42 3%
Depreciation and amortization 2,20C 2,24( (40) (2)%
Total operating expenses $ 7,771 7,541 23( 3%
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Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptiri and amortization) increased by $89 milliam 5% , for the three months ended
June 30, 2014 as compared to the three months &oehed30, 2013 primarily due to increases in custgmemise equipment installation
expenses related to the increase in data integregicenues, facility and network costs, Prism T¥goamming expenses and higher costs
related to an increased universal fund contribuféator. Cost of services and products (exclusiviepreciation and amortization) increased
by $228 million , or 6% , for the six months endieshe 30, 2014 as compared to the six months enated3D, 2013 primarily due to increases
in employee related costs customer premise equipim&tallation expenses related to the increaskata integration revenues, facility and
network costs, real estate and power costs Prismprogramming expenses and higher costs related itaceeased universal fund contribution
factor.

Selling, general and administrative expenses iseeéy $17 million , or 2% , for the three monthded June 30, 2014 as compared to
the three months ended June 30, 2013 primariljtairecreases in employee related costs (includavgimnce costs) and impairment charges
related to office buildings (one of which is undentract and pending sale and one of which is beagptiated under a sale-leaseback
arrangement), which were offset by a decreasedpegsty and other taxes. Selling, general and aditnative expenses increased by $42
million , or 3% , for the six months ended JuneZW 4 as compared to the six months ended Jurz023, primarily due to increases in
employee related costs (including severance castaketing and advertising expenses and impairictegnriges related to office buildings (one
of which is under contract and pending sale andodnehich is being negotiated under a sale-leadeba@ngement).

Depreciation and amortization expenses decreas&3ynillion , or 3% , and by $40 million , or 2%rfthe three and six months ended
June 30, 2014 as compared to the three and sixmended June 30, 2013 .

Depreciation expense was $727 million for bothtthree months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 andifiio4 for both the six months
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 . Annual depreciakipanse is impacted by changes in our depreciatebasis, changes in our estimates of
the remaining economic life of certain assets &edaddition of new plant. The 2014 depreciationeege related to our plant placed in service
prior to 2014 is expected to be lower than the 2@d&eciation expense due to our plant aging andrbimg fully depreciated or retired at a
faster rate than the addition of new plant durimgy$ame period. During January, we implementedggsaim estimates that reduced the
remaining economic lives of certain switch anduiraetwork equipment which we expect to resulnicreased 2014 annual depreciation
expense. We expect depreciation expense will iser@athe second half of 2014 compared to thetiatof 2014 due to the timing of net
additions of plant during 2014 . For more inforroatabout the changes in our estimates of the renga@tonomic lives of these assets, see
Note }—Basis of Presentation to our consolidated findrete@tements in Item 1 of Part | of this report.

Amortization expense decreased by $30 million f&886 million in the three months ended June 303261366 million in the three
months ended June 30, 2014 and by $40 million @86 million in the six months ended June 30, 2@18755 million in the six months
ended June 30, 2014 primarily due to the use aflacated amortization methods for a portion ofdhstomer relationship assets that were
acquired in connection with the acquisitions of Enmtpin 2009 and Qwest in 2011. These quarterlyinkeslare expected to continue.
Amortization of our software investments declineg do software becoming fully amortized faster thaw software is acquired, which was
partially offset by a change in the estimate ofrém@aining economic lives of the Savvis trade name certain cloud software. For more
information about the changes in our estimates®fémaining economic lives of these assets, sé& NeBasis of Presentation to our
consolidated financial statements in ltem 1 of Paftthis report.

Further analysis of our operating expenses by segim@rovided below in "Segment Results."”
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Other Consolidated Results

The following tables summarize our total other imeo(expense) and income tax expense:

Three Months Ended June 30,

Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Interest expense $ (325 (325 — — %
Other (expense) income, net ) 4 (13 (275%
Total other income (expense), net $ (332 (321) 11 3%
Income tax expense $ 13C 12t 5 4%

Six Months Ended June 30,

Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Interest expense $ (65€) (647) 15 2%
Other income (expense), net 2 43 (42) (95)%
Total other income (expense), net $ (654) (59¢) 56 9%
Income tax expense $ 25¢ 332 (74) (22)%

Interest Expense

There was no change in interest expense for tlee tmonths ended June 30, 2014 as compared tordfeentionths ended June 30, 2013 .
Although the interest expense remained unchangetiéacomparable periods, interest expense inadedise to a higher average outstanding
debt balance in 2014 and a reduction in the anaditia of debt premiums, which was fully offset bgecrease in interest expense as a result
a settlement of an operating tax liability. Intérespense increased by $15 million , or 2% , fershx months ended June 30, 2@k4compare
to the six months ended June 30, 2013 primarilytdwehigher average outstanding debt balanceid 2@d a reduction in the amortization of
debt premiums.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) reflects certain items ivettly related to our core operations, including share of income from our 49%
interest in a cellular partnership, interest incpgens and losses from non-operating asset digpusiand foreign currency gains and losses.
Other income (expense) changed by $11 millionterthree months ended June 30, 2014 as compaiieel tiaree months ended June 30, 201
primarily due to a second quarter of 2014 impairmodrarge of $14 million recorded in connection vitik pending sale of our 700 MHz A-
Block wireless spectrum licenses, which was payt@ffset by gains from foreign currency transaetoOther income decreased$#1 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2014 as comparte six months ended June 30, 2013 primarilyalsecond quarter of 2014 impairment
charge of $14 million , as further described aba#$32 million gain on the sale of wireless spentim the first quarter of 2013 , which was
partially offset by losses on foreign currency sagtions during the same 2013 period.

Income Tax Expense

For the three months ended June 30, 2014 and 20ir3effective income tax rate was 40.2% and 31,.¥éspectively, and for the six
months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, our effeiciivene tax rate was 39.4% and 36.9% , respectilidlg effective tax rates for the three
and six months ended June 30, 2014 reflect thedtrgdano tax benefit from the impairment of our Mblz A-Block wireless spectrum
licenses, because we are not likely to generataniecf a character required to realize a tax befrefn the loss on ultimate disposition. The
effective tax rates for the three and six monthdednJune 30, 2013 reflect the net impact of a faversettlement with the Internal Revenue
Service of $33 milliorecorded in the three months ended June 30, 20ii8hwas partially offset by an unfavorable accovgadjustment fc
nondeductible life insurance costs recorded irthihee months ended March 31, 2013.
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Segment Result
General

Our segment results are summarized below:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(Dollars in millions)

Total segment revenues $ 4,28¢ 4,27¢ 8,57 8,53:
Total segment expenses 2,11¢ 2,041 4,215 3,96¢
Total segment income $ 2,17C 2,23t 4,35t 4,56:
Total margin percentage 51% 52% 51% 53%
Consumer:

Revenues $ 1,50( 1,49¢ 3,00¢ 3,00t

Expenses 59¢ 574 1,182 1,12:

Income $ 901 92C 1,827 1,88:

Margin percentage 60% 62% 61% 63%
Business:

Revenues $ 1,564 1,52t 3,12 3,03(

Expenses 97z 912 1,93¢ 1,76¢

Income $ 592 6153 1,18t 1,261

Margin percentage 38% 40% 38% 42%
Wholesale:

Revenues $ 86¢ 91C 1,72¢ 1,81¢

Expenses 28¢ 301 55¢ 57¢

Income $ 58¢ 60¢ 1,16¢ 1,241

Margin percentage 67% 67% 68% 68%
Hosting:

Revenues $ 35¢ 347 71z 681

Expenses 264 254 53¢ 50z

Income $ 94 93 174 17¢

Margin percentage 26% 27% 24% 26%

During the first quarter of 2014, we adopted sevetianges with respect to the assignment of ceetgirenses to our segments. We have
restated the previously reported segment resultthéthree and six months ended June 30, 2018w to the current presentation. For
additional information on these changes, see NetS&&gment Information to our consolidated finanstatements in Iltem 1 of Part | of this
report.

Our segment revenues include all revenues fronsimategic and legacy services and data integrasaescribed in more detail above.
We assign each of our customers to a single segameiteport all of the revenues we derive from thistomer to that segment, with the
exception of hosting revenue generated from busiard wholesale customers, which is reported itifgpsegment revenues. We report our
segment expenses for our four segments as follows:

» Direct expenses, which primarily are specific expenses incurrecasrect result of providing services and prodtietsegment
customers, along with selling, general and adnriatise expenses that are directly associated witicific segment customers or
activities; and

» Allocated expenses, which include network expenses, facilities expsrsnd other expenses such as fleet and real esfsnse
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We do not assign depreciation and amortization esg@®r impairments to our segments, as the retesteets and capital expenditures are
centrally managed and are not monitored by or teddo the chief operating decision maker ("CODM)segment. Similarly, we do not
assign to our segments severance expenses, ragtrgaxpenses and, certain centrally managed asknaitive functions (such as finance,
information technology, legal and human resourdesyrest expense is also excluded from segmealtsdsecause we manage our financin
a total company basis and have not allocated agsdebt to specific segments. Similarly, we exelather income (expense) from our segr
results.

Consumer
The operations of our consumer segment have beaacbed by several significant trends, includingsthdescribed below:

e Srategic services. In order to remain competitive and attract addiiaresidential broadband subscribers, we belieigmportant to
continually increase our broadband network's se@speconnection speeds. As a result, we continuevést in our broadband
network, which allows for the delivery of higheregl broadband services to a greater number ofroesso We compete in a maturi
broadband market in which most consumers already heoadband services and growth rates in new gbbss have slowed.
Moreover, as described further in Item 1A of Phdflthis report, demand for our broadband servamdd be adversely affected by
competitors continuing to provide services at highreadband speed than ours or expanding theimagdawireless data service
offerings. We also continue to expand our stratpgiciuct offerings, including facilities-based widgervices. The expansion of our
facilities-based video service infrastructure reggius to incur start-up expenses in advance aktfenue that this service is expected
to generate. Although, over time, we expect thatreuenue for facilities-based video services wofifset the expenses incurred, the
timing of this revenue growth is uncertain. We &edi these efforts will improve our ability to congpand increase our strategic
revenues;

e Legacy services. Our voice revenues have been, and we expect thliegontinue to be, adversely affected by accass losses.
Intense competition and product substitution cargito drive our access line losses. For examplayrmansumers are substituting
cable and wireless voice services and electronit; teating and social networking non-voice sergder traditional voice
telecommunications services. We expect that theesters will continue to negatively impact our besis. As a result of the expected
loss of high margin services associated with acliess, we continue to offer our customers serbigedling and other product
promotions to help mitigate this trend, as describelow;

»  Service bundling and product promotions. We offer our customers the ability to bundle npiétiproducts and services. These
customers can bundle local services with otheriseswsuch as broadband, video, long-distance aredess. While we believe our
bundled service offerings can help retain custonikey also tend to lower our profit margins in dessumer segment; and

e Operating efficiencies. We continue to evaluate our operating structucefanus. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwifgrovements and changes in industry, competitaghnological and regulatory
conditions. We also expect our consumer segmemtnefit indirectly from efficiencies in our compamyde network operations.
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The following tables summarize the results of ofjens from our consumer segment:

Segment revenues:
Strategic services
Legacy services
Data integration
Total revenues

Segment expenses:
Direct
Allocated
Total expenses

Segment income

Segment margin percentage

Segment revenues:
Strategic services
Legacy services
Data integration
Total revenues

Segment expenses:
Direct
Allocated
Total expenses

Segment income

Segment margin percentage

Segment Revenues

Consumer revenues increased by $6 million , ortlees 1%, for the three months ended June 30, 88Témpared to the three months
ended June 30, 2013 and increased by $4 millioess than 1%, for the six months ended June BD4 2s compared to the six months ende
June 30, 2013 . The increase in strategic serveasues for both periods was due primarily to rr@duincreases in our facilities-based video

Consumer Segment

Three Months Ended June 30,

Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
70¢ 653 56 9%
79C 84C (50 (6)%
1 1 — — %
1,50( 1,494 6 — %
47¢ 45¢ 20 4%
121 11€ 5 4%
59¢ 574 25 4 %
901 92¢ (19) 2)%
6C% 62%
Consumer Segment
Six Months Ended June 30, Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
1,411 1,29¢ 118 9%
1,59¢ 1,704 (10¢) (6)%
2 3 (1) (33%
3,00¢ 3,00¢ 4 — %
944 894 50 6 %
23¢ 22¢ 9 4%
1,182 1,12: 59 5%
1,82 1,882 (55 3%
61% 63%

services and increases in the number of broadhavstsbers, as well as from price increases orouarservices. The decline in legacy sen
revenues for both periods was primarily due toideslin local and long-distance service volumesd@aged with access line losses resulting

from the competitive and technological changes rilgsd above.
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Segment Expenses

Consumer expenses increased by $25 million , or ##cthe three months ended June 30, 2014 as cechpathe three months ended
June 30, 2013 primarily due to an increase in @nogning expenses for Prism TV content resulting fo@ase subscriber growth in our Prism
TV markets, which were partially offset by decreaseemployee related costs. Consumer expensesaged by $59 million , or 5% , for the
six months ended June 30, 2014 as compared taxtheosiths ended June 30, 2013 primarily due todases in marketing and advertising
expenses and for Prism TV content resulting froselsubscriber growth in our Prism TV markets, whighne partially offset by reductions in
employee related costs.

Segment Income

Consumer income decreased by $19 million , or 286the three months ended June 30, 2014 as cothpatbe three months ended
June 30, 2013 and decreased by $55 million , or &%¥the six months ended June 30, 2014 as cordparthe six months ended June 30,
2013. The decline in consumer segment income for betfods was primarily due to customers migratingrflegacy services to lower mar
strategic services, which caused our segment egpeasncrease at a faster pace than segment exvenu

Business
The operations of our business segment have bgmactad by several significant trends, includingsthdescribed below:

e Strategic services. Our mix of total segment revenues continues taabégfrom legacy services to strategic servicesuas
commercial, enterprise, global and governmentaiorniers increasingly demand customized and integi@ddta, Internet and voice
services. We offer diverse combinations of emergaufpnology products and services such as prirege MPLS, and VolP services.
We believe these services afford our customers ffh@xibility in managing their communications neextsl improve the effectiveness
and efficiency of their operations. Although we arperiencing price compression on our strategiicees due to competition, we
expect strategic revenues from these servicesriince to grow during 2014;

» Legacy services. We face intense competition with respect to oghhmargin legacy services and continue to see gstmigrating
away from these services and into lower margirtesgia services. In addition, our legacy servicegneies have been, and we expect
they will continue to be, adversely affected byesscline losses and price compression;

« Dataintegration. We expect both data integration revenue and tlhéexkcosts will fluctuate from quarter to quarsrthis offering
tends to be more sensitive than others to chamgi&ieconomy and in spending trends of our fedstatle and local governmental
customers, many of whom have recently experienabdtantial budget cuts with the possibility of dddfial future budget cuts; and

*  Operating efficiencies. We continue to evaluate our operating structudefaous. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwityrovements and changes in industry, competite@hnological and regulatory
conditions, while achieving operational efficierscEnd improving our processes through automatiomweyer, our ongoing efforts to
increase revenue will continue to require that meir higher costs in some areas, including thediaf additional sales employees.
We also expect our business segment to benefiticttl from efficiencies in our company-wide netwaperations.
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The following tables summarize the results of ofjens from our business segment:

Business Segment

Three Months Ended June 30,
Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease) %Change

(Dollars in millions)
Segment revenues:

Strategic services $ 662 61t 48 8%
Legacy services 71t 744 (29 (4%
Data integration 18¢€ 16€ 20 12%
Total revenues 1,56¢ 1,52¢ 39 3%
Segment expenses:
Direct 86€ 804 62 8 %
Allocated 10¢ 10¢ (2 (2%
Total expenses 972 91z 60 7%
Segment income $ 592 61c (21) (3)%
Segment margin percentage 38% 40%

Business Segment

Six Months Ended June 30,
Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease) %Change

(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenues:

Strategic services $ 1,31¢ 1,22¢ 89 7%
Legacy services 1,44¢ 1,49 (52) (3)%
Data integration 35¢ 304 55 18%
Total revenues 3,12: 3,03( 93 3%
Segment expenses:
Direct 1,72( 1,557 162 10%
Allocated 21¢ 212 6 3%
Total expenses 1,93¢ 1,76¢ 16¢ 10%
Segment income $ 1,18t 1,261 (76) (6)%
Segment margin percentage 38% 42%

Segment Revenues

Business segment revenues increased by $39 mjlio8% , for the three months ended June 30, 281gbmpared to the three months
ended June 30, 2013 and increased by $93 milbor8% , for the six months ended June 30, 2014awpared to the six months ended
June 30, 2013 . The increase in business segmatues for both periods was primarily due to grointbur strategic services revenues and
data integration revenues, which were partiallgeifby a decline in legacy services revenues. Towth in our strategic services revenues for
both periods was primarily due to strong MPLS gndwth, higher Ethernet volume and an increasedadband rates, which were slightly
offset by a decline in private line (including sj@@ccess) services. The increase in data infegreg¢venues for both periods was primarily
to higher sales of customer premise equipment v@munental and business customers during the pérlueldecline in legacy services
revenues for both periods was attributable to lowvedumes of local, long-distance and traditional W&ervices.
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Segment Expenses

Business expenses increased by $60 million , or ft#the three months ended June 30, 2014 as cedipathe three months ended
June 30, 2013 primarily due to increases in em@aogéated expenses attributable to higher wagedeanefits, customer premise equipment
costs resulting from higher governmental and bussirsales noted above and facility costs driven By-$lunit growth. Business expenses
increased by $169 million , or 10% , for the sixmiits ended June 30, 2014 as compared to the sithmended June 30, 20@Bmarily due tc
increases in employee related expenses attributalligher wages, benefits and internal commissioustomer premise equipment costs
resulting from higher governmental and businessssabted above, facility costs driven by MPLS gnitwth and marketing and advertising
expenses.

Segment Income

Business income decreased by $21 million , or 386the three months ended June 30, 2014 as cothpatke three months ended
June 30, 2013 and decreased by $76 million , or f¥the six months ended June 30, 2014 as cordparthe six months ended June 30,
2013. The decrease in business segment income forgeoibds was primarily due to customers migratimgrflegacy services to lower mar
strategic services, which caused our segment egpeasncrease at a faster pace than segment exvenu

Wholesale
The operations of our wholesale segment have lmpadted by several significant trends, includingsthdescribed below:

e Strategic services. Demand for our private line services (including@pl access) has begun to decline due to our messd
optimization of their networks, industry consolidatand technological migration. While we expedéttthese factors will continue to
negatively impact our wholesale segment, we belibgedemand for our fiber-based special accesgssrprovided to wireline and
wireless carriers for backhaul will partially oftdbe decline in copper-based special access ssrpi@vided to wireline and wireless
carriers as they migrate to Ethernet servicespatih the timing and magnitude of this technologmaration remains uncertain;

* Legacy services. Our access, local services and long-distance tmghave been and we expect will continue to beraély affected
by customer migration to more technologically adhservices, declining demand for traditional ea@ervices, industry
consolidation and price compression caused by atiguland rate reductions. For example, wholesaisumers are substituting ca
wireless and VolP services for traditional voicetemmunications services, resulting in continueckas revenue loss. Our switched
access revenues have been and will continue tmpadted by changes related to the Connect Ameniddrdercarrier Compensation
Reform order ("CAF order") adopted by the Fedemn@unications Commission ("FCC") on October 27,201at we believe has
increased the pace of reductions in the amounvibflsed access revenues we receive in our wholesgiment. Conversely, the FCC
instituted an access recovery charge that we teeiiglV allow us to recover the majority of thesstloevenues directly from end users
in our consumer and business segments. We expeeffitt of these factors will continue to adversaipact our wholesale segment;
and

e Operating efficiencies. We continue to evaluate our operating structucefanus. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwifgrovements and changes in industry, competitaghnological and regulatory
conditions. We also expect our wholesale segmeb¢efit indirectly from enhanced efficiencies ir gompany-wide network
operations.
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The following tables summarize the results of ofjens from our wholesale segment:

Segment revenues:
Strategic services
Legacy services
Total revenues
Segment expenses:
Direct
Allocated
Total expenses
Segment income
Segment margin percentage

Segment revenues:
Strategic services
Legacy services
Total revenues
Segment expenses:
Direct
Allocated
Total expenses
Segment income
Segment margin percentage

Segment Revenues

Wholesale Segment

Three Months Ended June 30

2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
56€ 571 (3) ()%
29¢ 33¢ (41) (12)%
86€ 91C (44) (5)%
46 50 (4) (8)%
237 251 (14) (6)%
28¢ 301 (19 (6)%
582 60¢ (26) (@)%
67% 67%
Wholesale Segment
Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
1,13¢ 1,14z (4) — %
59C 674 (84) (12)%
1,72¢ 1,81¢ (88) (5)%
87 80 7 9%
472 49t (23) (5)%
55¢ 57E (16) ()%
1,16¢ 1,241 (72) (6)%
68% 68%

Wholesale revenues decreased by $44 million , or if¥the three months ended June 30, 2014 asa@upo the three months ended
June 30, 2013 and decreased by $88 million , or ff¥%the six months ended June 30, 2014 as cordparthe six months ended June 30,
2013 . The decline in legacy services revenuebdt periods reflects continuing declines in aceesslong-distance services volumes and

revenues due to the substitution of cable, wiredessVolP services for traditional voice telecomiwations services. The decline in strategic

services revenues for both periods was due to lpwreate line and special access services revemdgsh were substantially offset by an

increase in Ethernet revenues from higher volume.

Segment Expenses

Wholesale expenses decreased by $18 million , or l8¥the three months ended June 30, 2014 asa@dpo the three months ended

June 30, 2013 . Total direct expenses decreasdledhree months ended June 30, 2014 as compuatled three months ended June 30, 201:

primarily due to decreases in access and netw@&reses, partially offset by an increase in amdrtineof deferred costs for new circuit
installations. Allocated expenses for the three tm@ended June 30, 2014 as compared to the thnethsnended June 30, 2013 decreased
primarily due to a reduction in allocated facildgsts and employee salaries. Wholesale expensesaded by $16 million , or 3% , for the six
months ended June 30, 2014 as compared to thessithmended June 30, 2013 . Total direct expensesased for the six months ended
June 30, 2014 as compared to the six months enohed3D, 2013 primarily due to increases in accegerese and amortization of deferred
costs for new circuit installations. Allocated erpes for the six months ended June 30, 2014 asarechfo the six months ended June 30,
2013 decreased primarily due to lower allocatedifiacosts and employee related expenses.
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Segment Income

The decline in segment expenses was more thart bffsgeclines in both strategic and legacy serviegenues, which largely
contributed to the lower wholesale segment incofi26 million , or 4% , and $72 million , or 6%arfthe three and six months endkohe 3(
2014 as compared to the three and six months ehdexi30, 2013 .

Hosting
The operations of our hosting segment have beeadtad by several significant trends, including ¢hdescribed below:

e Coalocation. Colocation services are designed for customelsragpeata center space and power for their semeématworking
equipment needs. Our data centers provide ourmgstoaround the world with a secure, high-powepedposebuilt location for thei
IT equipment. We anticipate continued pricing puesdor these services as wholesale vendors cantmaxpand their enterprise
colocation operations; however, we believe thattgtorid data centers, which offer multiple produatel services (including
colocation, managed hosting, cloud and networkisesy will help differentiate our offerings;

e Managed hosting. Managed hosting services provide a fully managdatisn for customers' IT infrastructure and netkoeeds, and
include dedicated and cloud hosting services, ceimgpeapacity, consulting and managed securityisesv In recent years, our
competitors, as well as several large diversifemthhology companies, have made substantial invessnrecloud computing, which
has intensified competitive pressures. We belibaéthis expansion in competitive cloud computiffgerings has led to increased
pricing pressure and competition for enterprisaéamsrs, and expect those trends to continue. Howerehave remained focused on
expanding our managed hosting business, specyfioall cloud service offerings, by endeavoring td differentiating features to our
cloud products and acquiring additional compartias we believe have strengthened our cloud progducts

* Network services. Network services are comprised of our hosting astevork products supporting colocation and manédugesing
service offerings. Network services also includenageed VPN and bandwidth services. Segment inconihédse services has been
relatively flat due to pricing pressures on VPN @adidwidth services, and a decrease in the voldroardhosting area network
services; and

*  Operating efficiencies. We continue to evaluate our operating structudefaous. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwityrovements and changes in industry, competite@hnological and regulatory
conditions. However, our ongoing efforts to inceeasvenue will continue to require that we incight@r costs in some areas,
including the hiring of additional sales employees.

The following tables summarize the results of ofjena from our hosting segment, which are all catizgd as strategic services:

Hosting Segment
Three Months Ended June 30,

Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Segment revenues $ 35¢ 347 11 3%
Segment expenses 264 254 10 4%
Segment income $ 94 93 1 1%
Segment margin percentage 2€% 27%

Hosting Segment

Six Months Ended June 30,

Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Segment revenues $ 71z 681 31 5%
Segment expenses 53¢ 50z 36 7%
Segment income $ 174 17¢ (5) 3)%
Segment margin percentage 24% 26%
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Segment Revenues

Hosting revenues increased by $11 million , or 3% the three months ended June 30, 2014 as ceapathe three months ended
June 30, 2013 and increased by $31 million , or, 586 the six months ended June 30, 2014 as comparie six months ended June 30,
2013 . The increase in segment revenues for botbdsewas primarily due to growth in managed hastind colocation services, which were
slightly offset by a decline in MPLS services. Tiherease in revenues for both periods was drivendwy customer growth and the impact of
revenues contributed from recent acquisitions.

Segment Expenses

Hosting expenses increased by $10 million , or 466 the three months ended June 30, 2014 as cexhpathe three months ended
June 30, 2013 primarily due to increases in em@agéated costs, professional fees, network expemse real estate and power costs, which
were partially offset by a decrease in facility tsoslosting expenses increased by $36 million7.%r, for the six months ended June 30, 2014
as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2@hargy due to increases in employee related ¢cgstifessional fees, network expenses,
external commissions and real estate and powes.cost

Segment Income

Hosting income remained flat for the three montidesl June 30, 2014 as compared to the three mentlezi June 30, 2013 . Hosting
income decreased by $5 million , or 3% , for themsonths ended June 30, 2014 as compared to tmeasiths ended June 30, 2013 primarily
due to the increase in segment expenses out psegrgent revenue.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

At June 30, 2014 , we held cash and cash equigaté§i181 million and we had $1.2 billion of boriiogy capacity available under our
$2.0 billion revolving credit facility (referred s our "Credit Facility", which is described fuettbelow). At June 30, 2014 , cash and cash
equivalents of $65 million were held in foreign Batcounts for the purpose of funding our foreigerations. Due to various factors, our
access to foreign cash is generally much moreicgsirthan our access to domestic cash.

We and our Board of Directors monitor our use afhctioroughout the year, but with enhanced scrgany each year in connection with
the review of annual budgets. In connection withlmdgeting process in early 2014 , our executffieays and our Board of Directors
reviewed our sources and potential uses of cashtbeemext several years, including among othewghithe previously-disclosed effect of the
anticipated depletion of our federal net operatioss carryforwards by 2015 and the implementatioam mew 2014 share repurchase program.

Based on our current capital allocation objectidesing the remaining six months of 2014 we antitépexpending approximately $1.6
billion of cash for capital investment in propemjant and equipment and up to $618 million foridinds on our common stock, based on the
current quarterly common stock dividend rate ob8Gand the current number of outstanding commoresh&Ve have debt maturities of
approximately $600 million , scheduled debt primtipayments of $11 million , and scheduled capiase and other obligation payments of
$67 million due during the remainder of 2014 . ismanticipate expending cash for repurchasing comstock, but the amount will largely
depend on market conditions.

We will continue to monitor our future sources arsgs of cash, and anticipate that we will makesidjants to our capital allocation
strategies when, as and if determined by our Bo&Rirectors. We may also draw on our revolvingdiréacility as a source of liquidity for
operating activities and to give us additional ittélity to finance, among other things, our capitalestments, repayments of debt, pension
contributions, dividends or stock repurchases.

We currently expect to continue our current pract€paying quarterly cash dividends in respeduwfcommon stock, subject to our
board's discretion to modify or terminate this picecat any time and for any reason.

Capital Expenditures

We incur capital expenditures on an ongoing bas@der to enhance and modernize our networks, etgffectively in our markets
and expand our service offerings. We evaluate gagxpenditure projects based on a variety of faciacluding expected strategic impacts
(such as forecasted impact on revenue growth, ptoily, expenses, service levels and customentiete) and our expected return on
investment. The amount of capital investment ikigriced by, among other things, demand for ouriges\and products, cash flow generated
by operating activities, cash required for othemppsges and regulatory considerations. Based oowtent objectives, we estimate our total



capital expenditures to be approximately $1.6daillior the remaining six months of 2014 .
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Our capital expenditures continue to be focusedwrstrategic services such as video, broadbandraméged hosting services. In
particular, we expect to continue to focus on exjgamour fiber infrastructure, including installais of "fiber to the tower," which is a type of
telecommunications network consisting of fiber-omtables that run from a wireless carrier's maiellephone switching office to cellular
towers to enable the delivery of higher bandwidttviees supporting mobile technologies than wotitetawise generally be available throug
more traditional coppepased telecommunications network and on softwareldpment. For more information on capital spendseg Items
and 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for thayended December 31, 2013 .

Debt and Other Financing Arrangement

Subject to market conditions, we expect to contitaussue debt securities from time to time infiltteire to refinance a substantial por
of our maturing debt, including issuing Qwest Cagtimn debt securities to refinance its maturingtdancluding its $600 million of 7.5%
senior notes maturing on October 1, 2014 ) to #terd feasible. The availability, interest rate atider terms of any new borrowings will
depend on the ratings assigned to us and Qwesbfzdign by the credit rating agencies, among ofhetors.

As of the date of this report, the credit ratingsthe senior unsecured debt of CenturyLink, Imd @west Corporation were as follows:

Agency CenturyLink, Inc. Qwest Corporation
Standard & Poor's BB BBB-
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. Ba2 Baa3
Fitch Ratings BB+ BBB-

Our credit ratings are reviewed and adjusted friome to time by the rating agencies, and downgrafl€enturyLink's senior unsecured
debt ratings could, under certain circumstancesementally increase the cost of our borrowing urlde Credit Facility. Moreover, any
downgrades of CenturyLink's or Qwest Corporatigeisior unsecured debt ratings could impact oursscedebt capital or further raise our
borrowing costs. See "Risk Factors—Risks Affectig Liquidity and Capital Resources” in Item 1ARHrt |1 of this report.

Dividends

We currently expect to continue our current practi€paying quarterly cash dividends in respeauwfcommon stock subject to our
Board of Directors' discretion to modify or termi@ahis practice at any time and for any reasoralty 2013, our Board of Directors appro
a 25.5% reduction in our quarterly common stockddind rate to $0.54 per share, which we believeltexin a dividend payout rate that is
more sustainable over the long-term, and theretseased our flexibility to balance our multiple effjves of managing our business, paying
our fixed commitments and returning cash to ouredthalders. Assuming continued payment at thisab®0.54 per share, our total dividends
paid each quarter would be approximately $309 omillhased on owurrent number of outstanding shares (which doéseaflect shares that v
might repurchase or issue in future periods). $sk'Factors—Risks Affecting Our Business" in Ité of Part Il of this report and the
discussion of our stock repurchase program below.

Stock Repurchase Progran

In February 2013, our Board of Directors authorimedo repurchase up to $2 billion of our outstagdiommon stock. On May 29,
2014 , we completed the 2013 stock repurchase ampgrepurchasing over the course of the programtaadf 59.5 million shares on the open
market at an average price of $33p&8 share. The repurchased common stock has bied ré&or additional information on repurchasesla
during the three months ended June 30, 2014 teme? of Part Il of this report.

In February 2014 , our Board of Directors authatiaenew 24 -month program to repurchase up to greggte of $1 billion of our
outstanding common stock. This new 2014 stock @mge program took effect on May 29, 2014, immedjatpon the completion of the
above-described 2013 stock repurchase programf Asne 30, 2014 , we had approximately $955 mill@maining available for stock
repurchases under this 2014 stock repurchase pno@naluding common shares that, as of June 304 20 had agreed to purchase under
this program for $6 million in transactions thattleel early in the third quarter of 2014). As ofdust 5, 2014 , we had repurchased 2.6 million
shares for $97.3 million or an average purchaseemi $37.07 per share under this new program r&jerchased common stock has been
retired. We expect to continue executing this 26fidre repurchase program in open market transacgabject to market conditions and othel
factors. For additional information on repurchasesle during the three months ended June 30, 268t ltem 2 of Part Il of this report.
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Credit Facilities

We have access to up to $2 billion aggregate grai@mount of revolving credit under an amendedrasthted revolving credit facility
that matures in April 2017. The credit facility ¢thCredit Facility") has 18 lenders, with commitrteranging from $2.5 million to $181
million and allows us to obtain revolving loans d@ndssue up to $400 million of letters of credrhich upon issuance reduce the amount
available for other extensions of credit. Inteisstssessed on borrowings using either the LIBOR@base rate (each as defined in the Credi
Facility) plus an applicable margin between 1.25% 2.25% per annum for LIBOR loans and 0.25% a@8%.per annum for base rate loans
depending on our then current senior unsecuredtemgy debt rating. Our obligations under the Cré&ditility are currently guaranteed by th
of our wholly-owned subsidiaries, Embarg, QCIlI &alvis, Inc., one of QCII's wholly-owned subsidiarand one of Savvis, Inc.'s wholly-
owned subsidiaries. At June 30, 2014 , we had $&#ion in borrowings and no amounts of letterscogdit outstanding under the Credit
Facility.

Under the Credit Facility, we, and our indirect sidilary, Qwest Corporation, must maintain a detEBdTDA (earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization, as definalimCredit Facility) ratio of not more than 4.@%&nd 2.85:1.0, respectively, as of the last da
of each fiscal quarter for the four quarters thedeel. The Credit Facility also contains a neggtieelge covenant, which generally requires us
to secure equally and ratably any advances undeCtedit Facility if we pledge assets or permitdie®n our property for the benefit of other
debtholders. The Credit Facility also has a cr@gsment default provision, and the Credit Facilitglaertain of our debt securities also have
cross acceleration provisions. When present, themsgsions could have a wider impact on liquidiah might otherwise arise from a defaul
acceleration of a single debt instrument. To thembx¢hat our EBITDA (as defined in our Credit Hiag) declines for any reason, our debt to
EBITDA ratios under certain debt agreements wilbldeersely affected. This could reduce our finagdiexibility due to potential restrictions
on incurring additional debt under certain provisi@f our debt agreements or, in certain circuntgsncould result in a default under certain
provisions of such agreements.

At June 30, 2014 , we owed $391 million under entbyan maturing in 2019 , that includes covenaubstntially the same as those set
forth in the Credit Facility.

We have a $160 million uncommitted revolving lettércredit facility which enables us to providetées of credit under terms that may
be more favorable than those under the Creditifacit June 30, 2014 , our outstanding lettersrefdit totaled $116 million under this
facility.

Future Contractual Obligations

For information regarding our estimated future cactual obligations, see the MD&A discussion inéddn our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 .

Pension and Po-retirement Benefit Obligations

We are subject to material obligations under oistang defined benefit pension plans and postegtent benefit plans. The accounting
unfunded status or benefit obligations as of Deaarshi, 2013 of our defined benefit pension plard @ost-retirement plans were $1.055
billion and $3.153 billion , respectively. See N8te-Employee Benefits to our consolidated finanstatements in Item 8 of Part Il of our
Annual Report Form 10-K for the year ended Decen3iie2013 for additional information about our gensand post-retirement benefit
arrangements.

Benefits paid by our qualified pension plans arié plarough a trust that holds all plan assets. Basecurrent laws and circumstances,
we expect to be required to make approximately#@on in contributions to the plans during themaining six months of 2014. The amount
of required contributions to our plans in 2015 aegiond will depend on a variety of factors, mostvbfch are beyond our control, including
earnings on plan investments, prevailing interatits, demographic experience, changes in planiteastl changes in funding laws and
regulations.

Certain of our post-retirement health care anditifeirance benefits plans are unfunded. Severgtkthold assets that are used to help
cover the health care costs of certain retireesofA¥cember 31, 2013, the fair value of thessttassets was $535 milliginowever, a portic
of these assets is comprised of investments wittniceed liquidity. We estimate that the more ldjaissets in the trust will be adequate to
provide continuing reimbursements for covered pestement health care costs for approximatelydtyears. Thereafter, covered benefits will
be paid either directly by us or from the trustshesremaining assets become liquid. This projetttezk year period could be substantially
shorter or longer depending on changes in heakhmast trends, our actual returns on plan as$etdiming of maturities of illiquid plan asse
the actual timing of reimbursement payments angréuthanges in benefits.

For 2014, our estimated annual long-term rate tofrneon the pension plans trust assets is 7.5%a@rnte post-retirement plans trust



assets is 7.3% based on the assets currentlyhieidsver, actual returns could be substantiallyedéit.
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For additional information on factors that coulfluence our funding commitments under these andrgilans, see "Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimates—Pension and Post-RetireBemefits" in this Item 7 of Part Il of our Annuakport Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013 and "Risk Factors—Risks AffectingLiquidity and Capital Resources—Increasessts for pension and healthcare
benefits for our active and retired employee maluce our profitability and increase our funding coitments” in Item 1A of Part Il of this
report.

Net Operating Loss Carryforward

We are currently using NOLs to offset a portioroaf federal taxable income. We expect to deplatigmificant portion of these NOLs
and certain other deferred tax attributes by thieafr2014, and substantially all of these tax bigaéfy 2015. Once our NOLs are fully utilized,
we expect that the amounts of our cash flows déglict the payment of federal taxes will increadestantially. The amounts of those
payments will depend upon many factors, includingife earnings, tax law changes and future taxigistances. For additional information,
see "Risk Factors—Risks Affecting our Liquidity aB@dpital Resources" appearing in Item 1A of Padf lthis report.

Historical Information

The following table summarizes our consolidatechdbsn activities:

Six Months Ended June 30,

Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease)
(Dollars in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,50¢ 2,85¢ (347)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,419 (1,319 107
Net cash used in financing activities (1,077) (1,547 (464)

Net cash provided by operating activities decredse$347 million for the six months ended JuneZiL4 as compared to tB&x months
ended June 30, 2013 primarily due to a negativiereg in net income adjusted for non-cash itemsaatielcrease in the change in other currel
assets and liabilities, net, which includes a paymoéapproximately $235 million in the first quartof 2014 to settle certain litigation. These
decreases were substantially offset by positiveamaes in the changes in retirement benefits almer stoncurrent assets and liabilities, net. Fo
additional information about our operating resudtse "Results of Operations" above. For additioxfarmation about the settlement payment,
see Note 8—Commitments and Contingencies to owsalmated financial statements in Item 1 of Pant this report.

Net cash used in investing activities increase@1y7 million for the six months ended June 30, 284 4ompared to the six months
ended June 30, 2013 primarily due to less procesmisved from the sale of intangible assets.

Net cash used in financing activities decreasefi484 million for the six months ended June 30, 284 4ompared to the six months
ended June 30, 2013 substantially due to a reduittioommon stock repurchases.

On April 1, 2014, a subsidiary of Embarq paid atumgy the $30 million principal amount of its 7 %6Notes.

During the six months ended June 30, 2014 , werchjased 14.9 million shares of the company's antihg common stock in the open
market. These shares were repurchased for an aggnegrket price of $478 million , or an averagechase price of $31.99 per share. The
repurchased common stock has been retired. Foti@ualiinformation, see "Liquidity and Capital Resces—Stock Repurchase Programs"
above.

Certain Matters Related to Acquisitions

Qwest's pre-acquisition debt obligations consigt@aharily of debt securities issued by QCII and tefats subsidiaries while Savvis'
remaining long-term debt obligations consist priigaof capital leases, all of which are now incldde our consolidated debt balances. The
indentures governing Qwest's debt securities comtastomary covenants that restrict the abilit@efest or its subsidiaries from making
certain payments and investments, granting liedssatling or transferring assets. Based on cugieotimstances, we do not anticipate that
these covenants will significantly restrict ourlapito manage cash balances or transfer cash ketestities within our consolidated group of
companies as needed.

In accounting for the Qwest acquisition, we recdr@avest's debt securities at their estimated fies, which totaled $12.292 billion as
of April 1, 2011. Our acquisition date fair valugtimates were based primarily on quoted marketpr active markets and other observable
inputs where quoted market prices were not availakthe fair value of Qwest's debt securities exedeleir stated principal balances on the



acquisition date by $693 million, which we recor@eda premium.
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The table below summarizes the portions of thisniuen recognized as a reduction to interest expensgtinguished during the periods
indicated:

From April 1, 2011

Six Months Ended through Total Since
June 30, 2014 December 31, 2013 Acquisition
(Dollars in millions)
Amortized $ 24 302 32¢
Extinguished? — 27¢ 27¢
Total $ 24 57¢ 602

(1) Extinguished in connection with the paymenQuiest debt securities at maturity.

The remaining premium of $91 million as of June 3014 will reduce interest expense in future pesjathless otherwise extinguished.
Other Matters

CenturyLink has cash management arrangements ®iithig of its principal subsidiaries, in which st#rgial portions of the subsidiaries'
cash is regularly advanced to CenturyLink. Altho@gmturyLink periodically repays these advancesitol the subsidiaries' cash requireme
throughout the year, at any given point in time @eriink may owe a substantial sum to our subsidgunder these advances, which, in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes; are eliminated in consolidation and therefoot recognized on our consolidated
balance sheets.

In July 2014, we entered into a definitive agreemersell and assign our remaining 700 MHz wirekgssctrum licenses for $39 million
in cash in the aggregate. The sale is expecteldse wvithin one year, subject to regulatory appreval other customary closing conditions.
Additionally, in July 2014, we entered into a défire agreement to sell a building for $14 millipwhich is expected to close within one year,
subject to customary closing conditions.

We also are involved in various legal proceedimgs tould have a material adverse effect on oanfiral position. See Note 8—
Commitments and Contingencies to our consolidatehtial statements in Item 1 of Part | of thisaxtfor the current status of such legal
proceedings.

Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes inestemates on our variable rate long-term debt akithgs and fluctuations in certain
foreign currencies. We seek to maintain a favoratileof fixed and variable rate debt in an effarfimit interest costs and cash flow volatility
resulting from changes in rates.

Management periodically reviews our exposure tergst rate fluctuations and periodically implemestitategies to manage the expos
From time to time, we have used derivative instmiso (i) lockin or swap our exposure to changing or variablergst rates for fixed inter
rates or (ii) to swap obligations to pay fixed net&t rates for variable interest rates. As of Bhe014 , we had no such instruments
outstanding. We have established policies and pires for risk assessment and the approval, regoatid monitoring of derivative
instrument activities. We do not hold or issue d&ive financial instruments for trading or spetiviapurposes.

We do not believe that there were any material ghano market risks arising from changes in intawes for the six months ended
June 30, 2014 , when compared to the disclosumadad in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for theyended December 31, 2013 .

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no special purpose or limited purposeiestihat provide off-balance sheet financing, lifityi or market or credit risk support
and we do not engage in leasing, hedging, or atingtar activities that expose us to any significkabilities that are not (i) reflected on the
face of the consolidated financial statementsd{gglosed in Note 15—Commitments and Contingencierir consolidated financial
statements in Item 8 of Part Il of our Annual Reémor Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2048i) discussed under the heading
"Market Risk" above.
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Other Information

Our website is www.centurylink.com. We routinelyspanportant investor information in the "InvesiRelations" section of our website
atir.centurylink.com. The information contained on, or that may be ased through, our website is not part of this gubsrireport. You may
obtain free electronic copies of our annual repont$orm 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, entireports on Form 8-K and all
amendments to those reports in the "Investor Relatisection of our websitdr(centurylink.com) under the heading "SEC Filings." These
reports are available on our website as soon asmehly practicable after we electronically filetin with the SEC.

Certain of the industry and market data (such esite of certain markets and our position withigse markets) used throughout this
report are based on independent industry publiecatigovernment publications, reports by marketanesefirms or other published indepenc
sources. Some market data and statistical infoomatie also based on our good faith estimates,hwdrie derived from our review of internal
surveys, as well as the independent sources kdiede. This information may prove to be inaccubeteause of the method by which we ob
some of the data for our estimates or becauséntloisnation cannot always be verified with certgidue to the limits on the availability and
reliability of raw data, the voluntary nature oéttlata gathering process and other limitationsusiegrtainties. As a result, although we believe
these sources are reliable, we have not indepdydenified the information and cannot guarantseaitcuracy and completeness.

In addition to historical information, this MD& A includes certain forward-looking statements that are based upon our judgment and
assumptions as of the date of this report concerning future devel opments and events, many of which are beyond our control. These forward-
looking statements, and the assumptions upon which they are based, are inherently speculative and are subject to a number of risks and
uncertainties. Actual events and results may differ materially from those anticipated, estimated, projected or implied by us in those statements if
one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or if underlying assumptions prove incorrect. Factors that could affect actual results
include but are not limited to: the timing, success and overall effects of competition from a wide variety of competitive providers; the risks
inherent in rapid technological change, including product displacement; the effects of ongoing changes in the regulation of the communications
industry (including the outcome of regulatory or judicial proceedingsrelating to intercarrier compensation, access charges, universal service,
broadband deployment, data protection and net neutrality); our ability to effectively adjust to changes in the communications industry and
changes in the composition of our markets and product mix caused by our recent acquisitions; our ability to successfully integrate recently-
acquired operations into our incumbent operations, including the possibility that the anticipated benefits from our recent acquisitions cannot be
fully realized in a timely manner or at all; our ability to effectively manage our expansion opportunities, including retaining and hiring key
personnel; possible changes in the demand for, or pricing of, our products and services, including our ability to effectively respond to increased
demand for high-speed broadband services; our ability to successfully introduce new product or service offerings on a timely and cost-effective
basis; the adverse impact on our business and network from possible equipment failures, security breaches or similar attacks on our network;
our ability to successfully negotiate collective bargaining agreements on reasonabl e terms without work stoppages; our ability to use our net
operating loss carryforwards in projected amounts; our continued access to credit markets on favorable terms; our ability to collect our
receivables from financially troubled communications companies; our ability to maintain favorable relations with our key business partners,
suppliers, vendors, landlords and financial institutions;any adverse developmentsin legal or regulatory proceedingsinvolving us; changesin
our operating plans, cor porate strategies, dividend payment plans or other capital allocation plans, including those caused by changesin our
cash requirements, capital expenditure needs, debt obligations, pension funding requirements, cash flows, or financial position, or other similar
changes; the effects of adverse weather; other risks referenced in this report (including in "Risk Factors' in Item 1A of Part Il of this report) or
fromtime to time in other of our filings with the SEC; and the effects of more general factors such as changesin interest rates, in tax rates, in
accounting policies or practices, in operating, medical, pension or administrative costs, in general market, labor or economic conditions, or in
legidation, regulation or public policy. These and other uncertainties related to our business and our recent acquisitions are described in
greater detail in Item 1A of Part | of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, as updated and supplemented by
our subsequent SEC reports, including this report. You should be aware that new factors may emerge fromtime to time and it is not possible for
usto identify all such factors nor can we predict the impact of each such factor on the business or the extent to which any one or more factors
may cause actual results to differ from those reflected in any forward-looking statements. Given these uncertainties, we caution investors not to
unduly rely on our forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements for any reason,
whether as a result of new information, future events or developments, changed circumstances, or otherwise. Furthermore, any information
about our intentions contained in any of our forward-looking statements reflects our intentions as of the date of this report, and is based upon,
among other things, the existing regulatory and technological environment, industry and competitive conditions, and economic and market
conditions, and our assumptions as of such date. We may change our intentions, strategies or plans (including our dividend or stock repurchase
plans) at any time and without notice, based upon any changesin such factors, in our assumptions or otherwise.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK

See "Liquidity and Capital Resources—Market Riskitem 2 of Part | above for quantitative and gadilve disclosures about market
risk.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DisclosarControls and Procedures

The effectiveness of our or any system of disclesantrols and procedures is subject to certaiitditons, including the exercise of
judgment in designing, implementing and evaluatimgcontrols and procedures, the assumptions nsdéritifying the likelihood of futur
events and the inability to eliminate misconduahptetely. As a result, there can be no assurarateotir disclosure controls and procedures
will detect all errors or fraud. By their natureirar any system of disclosure controls and promsioan provide only reasonable assurance
regarding management's control objectives.

Our Chief Executive Officer, Glen F. Post, Ill, aowr Chief Financial Officer, R. Stewart Ewing,, Jrave evaluated the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and proced(asglefined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) ®Scurities Exchange Act of 1934, or the
"Exchange Act") at June 30, 2014 . Based on thaluation, Messrs. Post and Ewing concluded that@matosure controls and procedures are
designed, and are effective, to provide reasoreddarance that the information required to be aligdl by us in the reports that we file under
the Exchange Act is timely recorded, processedpsanized and reported and to ensure that informagquoired to be disclosed in the reports
that we file or submit under the Exchange Act isusculated and communicated to our management,dimguMessrs. Post and Ewing, in a
manner that allows timely decisions regarding regfudisclosure.

There were no changes in our internal control divwancial reporting during the second quarter af£that materially affected, or that
believe are reasonably likely to materially affemir internal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il — OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information contained in Note 8Semmitments and Contingencies included in Iltem Pantt | of this report is incorporated hereir
reference.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following discussion of “risk factors” iden# the most significant risks or uncertainties tatld (i) materially and adversely affect
our business, financial condition, results of ofiers, liquidity or prospects or (ii) cause ourwadtresults to differ materially from our
anticipated results or other expectations. Thefdlg information should be read in conjunctiontwitanagement’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsd aur consolidated financial statements and rélatges included elsewhere in this report.
Please note that the following discussion is nt#rided to comprehensively list all risks or undattas faced by us. Our operations or actual
results could also be similarly impacted by addisiorisks and uncertainties that are not currekriipwn to us, that we currently deem to be
immaterial or that are not specific to us, suclyerseral economic conditions.

Risks Affecting Our Business

Increasing competition, including product substifon, continues to cause us to lose access linedctwhas adversely affected and
expected to continue to adversely affect our opergtesults and financial condition.

Various developments over the past several yeaes teused us to continue to lose access linesoagxperience increased competitive
pressures impacting each of our business segnattaye expect these trends will continue. In addito competition from larger national
telecommunications providers, we are facing indngasompetition from a variety of other sourcegluding cable and satellite companies,
wireless providers, technology companies, broadipaadiders, device providers, resellers, sales agmd facilities-based providers using
their own networks as well as those leasing pdrtaipnetwork.

Some of our current and potential competitors ff@rgproducts or services that are substitute®tortraditional voice services, including
wireless voice and non-voice communication seryifigoffer a more comprehensive range of commaiians products and services, (iii)
have market presence, engineering and technicabdajes, and financial and other resources greaten ours, (iv) own larger or more dive
networks with greater transmission capacity or o#ftrantages, (v) conduct operations or raise @lagoita lower cost than us, (vi) are subjec
less regulation, (vii) offer services nationallyioternationally to a larger geographic area ogdéabase of customers, (viii) offer greater online
content or (ix) have substantially stronger braachas. Consequently, these competitors may be leeftépped to provide more attractive
offerings, to charge lower prices for their produahd services, to develop and expand their contations and network infrastructures more
quickly, to adapt more swiftly to new or emergieghinologies and changes in customer requirementigviote greater resources to the
marketing and sale of their products and servigeg) provide more comprehensive customer service.

Competition could adversely impact us in severalsyancluding (i) the loss of customers and masketre, (ii) the possibility of
customers reducing their usage of our servicesittirgy to less profitable services, (iii) reducdffic on our networks, (iv) our need to exp
substantial time or money on new capital improvenpeojects, (v) our need to lower prices or inceeamrketing expenses to remain
competitive and (vi) our inability to diversify lsuccessfully offering new products or services.

We are continually taking steps to respond to tlvesepetitive pressures, but these efforts may aduzcessful. Our operating results
and financial condition would be adversely affedfdtiese initiatives are unsuccessful or insuffitiand if we otherwise are unable to
sufficiently stem or offset our continuing accdsg llosses and our revenue declines without cooredipg cost reductions. If this occurred, our
ability to service debt and pay other obligatiormnd also be adversely affected.
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Rapid technological changes could require substahtxpenditure of financial and other resources @xcess of contemplated levels, and
inability to respond to those changes could reduee market share and adversely affect our operatirggults and financial condition.

The communications industry is experiencing sigaffit technological changes, which in general ahaecing non-voice
communications and enabling a broader array of emiegs to offer services competitive with ours. Mafyhose technological changes are (i)
displacing or reducing demand for our traditionaice services, (ii) enabling the development of petitive products or services, or (iii)
enabling our current customers to reduce or bypss®f our networks. Similarly, demand for our loifle@nd services could be adversely
affected by advanced wireless data transmissidmt#ogies being deployed by wireless providerstandertain technologies permitting cable
companies and other competitors to deliver fasteadband speeds than ours. Rapid changes in tegynate also increasing the
competitiveness of the information technology ssgsiindustry.

We may not be able to accurately predict technolidrends or the success of newly-offered servieegher technological change could
require us to expend capital or other resourcexd@ess of currently contemplated levels, or todorthe development or provision of products
or services that others can provide more efficjentiwe are not able to develop new products ardises to keep pace with technological
advances, or if those products and services areidety accepted by customers, our ability to cotap®muld be adversely affected and our
market share could decline. Any inability to effeety respond to technological changes could atb@esely affect our operating results and
financial condition, as well as our ability to sers/debt and pay other obligations.

In addition to introducing new technologies ancdedfigs, we may need, from time to time, to phadeoatdated and unprofitable
technologies and services. If we are unable toodansa cost-effective basis, we could experiendaaged profits.

For additional information on the risks of incredi@xpenditures, see “Risk Factors—Risks Affectingldquidity and Capital
Resources—Our business requires us to incur sutzdteapital and operating expenses, which redoceswvailable free cash flow.”

Our legacy services continue to experience declinmevenues, and our efforts to offset these dedimeay not be successful.

In recent years, the telephone industry has expegea decline in access lines, long distance tesand network access revenues,
which, coupled with the other changes resultingrfcompetitive, technological and regulatory deveiepts, continue to place downward
pressure on the revenues we generate from ounjegacices.

We have taken a variety of steps to counter theskngs, including:
« an increased focus on selling a broader randpgbiergrowth strategic services, which are describecetaitielsewhere in this repc
« anincreased focus on serving a broader rangesifidss, governmental and wholesale custol
« greater use of service bundles;

e acquisitions to increase our scale and stremgbiie product offerings, including new products aedvices provided by our hosting
segment.

However, some of these strategic services genlenatr profit margins than our traditional servicasd some can be expected to
experience slowing growth as increasing numbemiogxisting or potential customers subscribe és¢hnewer products. Moreover, we car
assure you that the revenues generated from ouofferings will offset revenue losses associatedhfreduced sales of our legacy products.
Similarly, we cannot assure you that our new serwviterings will be as successful as anticipatedhat we will be able to continue to grow
through acquisitions. In addition, our reliancethbind parties to provide certain of these strategic/ices could constrain our flexibility, as
described further below.

Our future results will suffer if we do not effeately adjust to changes in our business, and wiltther suffer if we do not effectively manag
our expanded operations.

The above-described changes in our industry haaeegla higher premium on technological, engineerragketing and provisioning
skills. Our recent acquisitions also significarthyanged the composition of our markets and proehixct Our future success depends, in part,
on our ability to retrain our staff to acquire tresigthen skills necessary to address these chamggswhere necessary, to attract and retain
new personnel that possess these skills. Giveouirent competitive market for personnel with thslsiéls, we cannot assure you that these
recruitment efforts will be successful.
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Unfavorable general economic conditions could neiyaty impact our operating results and financial ndition.

Unfavorable general economic conditions, includimg unstable economy and credit market, could neggtaffect our business.
Worldwide economic growth has been sluggish siri@2and many experts believe that a confluendéaabbrs in the United States, Europe,
Asia and developing countries may result in a prgéa period of economic stagnation, slow growteaanomic uncertainty. While it is
difficult to predict the ultimate impact of thesergeral economic conditions, they could adversdiycatiemand for some of our products and
services and could cause customers to shift torlpweed products and services or to delay or fonggrchases of our products and services.
These conditions impact, in particular, our abititysell discretionary products or services to bess customers that are under pressure to
reduce costs or to governmental customers that tememntly suffered substantial budget cuts withpfeesspect of additional future budget cuts.
Any one or more of these circumstances could coatin depress our revenues. Also, our customersemegunter financial hardships or may
not be able to obtain adequate access to credithvalould negatively impact their ability to makeaély payments to us. In addition, as
discussed further below, unstable economic andtareatkets may preclude us from refinancing matydebt at terms that are as favorable ac
those from which we previously benefited, at tetha are acceptable to us, or at all. For thessrea among others, if current economic
conditions persist or decline, our operating resdibancial condition, and liquidity could be adsely affected.

We could be harmed by security breaches, damagesttoer significant disruptions or failures of our etworks, information technology
infrastructure or related systems, or of those waeoate for certain of our customers.

To be successful, we will need to continue provgdaur customers with high-capacity, reliable anclse networks and data hosting
centers. We face the risk, as does any compargyseturity breach or significant disruption of smformation technology infrastructure and
related systems (including our billing systems).aAsommunications and information technology comypare face an added risk that a seci
breach or other significant disruption of our palilietworks or information technology infrastructara related systems that we develop,
install, operate and maintain for certain of ousibass and governmental customers could lead teriakinterruptions or curtailments of
service. Moreover, due to the nature of our custsraad services, we face a heightened risk thatarisy breach or disruption could result in
unauthorized access to our customers’ proprietagfassified information on our public networksioternal systems or the systems that we
operate and maintain for certain of our customers.

We make significant efforts to maintain the seguaitd integrity of these types of information agdtems and maintain contingency
plans in the event of security breaches or othstesy disruptions. Nonetheless, we cannot assuréhgbwur security efforts and measures wil
prevent unauthorized access to our systems, lodsstruction of data (including confidential custrimformation), account takeovers,
unavailability of service, computer viruses, maleyatistributed denial-of-service attacks, or ofleems of cyber attacks or similar events.
These threats may derive from human error, frawdice or sabotage on the part of employees, thartlgs or other nations, or could result
from accidental technological failure. Similar tiher large telecommunications companies, we aseget of cyber-attacks of varying degrees
on a regular basis. Although some of these atthake resulted in security breaches, to date notfeesgé breaches have resulted in a material
adverse effect on our operating results or findre@adition. We cannot assure you, however, thatr&isecurity breaches or disruptions would
not be successful or damaging, especially in liglthe growing frequency, scope and sophisticatiocyber attacks and intrusions. We may be
unable to anticipate all potential types of attaskmtrusions or to implement adequate securityidée or other preventative measures, and ar
resulting damages could be material.

Although we maintain insurance coverage that malgjest to policy terms and conditions (includindf-éesured deductibles, coverage
restrictions and monetary coverage caps) coveaioeaspects of cyber risks, such insurance coveregebe unavailable or insufficient to
cover our losses.

Additional risks to our network and infrastructimelude:
» power losses or physical damage, whether causéicebyadverse weather conditions, terrorism or nifise
 capacity or system configurance limitatic
« software and hardware obsolescence, defects ounadilbns
e programming, processing and other human errot
« other disruptions that are beyond our con

Network disruptions, security breaches and othgicant failures of the above-described systemsd:



« disrupt the proper functioning of these networkd aystems and therefore our operations or thosertdin of our customel
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« result in the unauthorized access to, and detginy loss, theft, misappropriation or releas@miprietary, confidential, sensitive or
otherwise valuable information of ours, our custey@ our customers’ end users, including tradeesgecwhich others could use for
competitive, disruptive, destructive or otherwiserhful purposes and outcomes;

* require significant management attention orritial resources to remedy the damages that restdtahange our systems, including
expenses to repair systems, add new personndly nostomers of breaches or develop additionalgmtote systems;

* require us to offer expensive incentives toiregxisting customers or subject us to claims fortcact breach, damages, credits, fines,
penalties, termination or other remedies, partitylaith respect to service standards set by stgalatory commissions; or

« result in a loss of business, damage our repataimong our customers and the public generallyjest us to additional regulatory
scrutiny or expose us to litigation.

Likewise, our ability to expand and update our infation technology infrastructure in response togrowth and changing needs is
important to the continued implementation of owvreervice offering initiatives. Our failure to exymhor upgrade our technology infrastruct
could have adverse consequences, which could ia¢chaldelayed implementation of new service offgjrdecreased competitiveness of
existing service offerings, increased acquisitimegration costs, service or billing interruptioasd the diversion of development resources.

Any or all of the foregoing developments could haveegative impact on our results of operatiomsricial condition and cash flows.

Increases in broadband usage may cause network c#pdimitations, resulting in service disruptionseduced capacity or slowe
transmission speeds for our customers.

Video streaming services and peer-to-peer fileisgaapplications use significantly more bandwidthri traditional Internet activity such
as web browsing and email. As use of these neweices continues to grow, our high-speed Internstamers will likely use much more
bandwidth than in the past. If this occurs, we ddae required to make significant capital expendguo increase network capacity in order to
avoid service disruptions, service degradatiorlawer transmission speeds for our customers. Adtidraly, we could choose to implement
network management practices to reduce the neteaphcity available to bandwidth-intensive actiwtgéuring certain times in market areas
experiencing congestion, which could negativelgeifour ability to retain and attract customeraffiected markets. While we believe demand
for these services may drive high-speed Internstiocners to pay for faster broadband speeds, wenotaye able to recover the costs of the
necessary network investments. This could reswhiadverse impact to our operating margins, resiilbperations and financial condition.

We may need to defend ourselves against claims Weinfringe upon others’ intellectual property rfgs, or we may need to seek thipawty
licenses to expand our product offerings.

From time to time, we receive notices from thirdtjgs or are named in lawsuits filed by third pestclaiming we have infringed or are
infringing upon their intellectual property right&/e are currently responding to several of thesee®and claims. Like other communications
companies, we have received an increasing numhkeesé notices and claims in the past several yaadsexpect this industry-wide trend will
continue. Responding to these claims may requite egpend significant time and money defendingusg of the applicable technology, and
divert management’s time and resources away frérardiusiness. In certain instances, we may benextjtop enter into licensing agreements
requiring royalty payments or, in the case of &tign, to pay damages. If we are required to tadeear more of these actions, our profit
margins may decline. In addition, in respondinghitese claims, we may be required to stop sellingdesign one or more of our products or
services, which could significantly and adversdfget our business practices, results of operatiand financial condition.

Similarly, from time to time, we may need to obt#ie right to use certain patents or other intéligicproperty from third parties to be
able to offer new products and services. If we catinense or otherwise obtain rights to use amyired technology from a third party on
reasonable terms, our ability to offer new prodaetd services may be prohibited, restricted, maole roostly or delayed.
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Our operations, financial performance and liquiditsre materially reliant on various third parties.

Reliance on other communications providers We rely on reseller and sales agency arrangemsétit®ther communications compan
to provide some of the services that we sell toamstomers, including video services and wirelesslycts and services. If we fail to extend or
renegotiate these arrangements as they expiretinoerto time or if these other companies fail tHilfctheir contractual obligations to us or @
customers, we may have difficulty finding altermatarrangements and our customers may experiesagtons to their services. In addition,
as a reseller or sales agent, we do not contradvh#ability, retail price, design, function, qitgl reliability, customer service or branding of
these products and services, nor do we directlyraball of the marketing and promotion of theseducts and services. To the extent that t
other companies make decisions that negatively étnar ability to market and sell their productsl aervices, our business plans and goals
and our reputation could be negatively impactethdte reseller and sales agency arrangementasueagssful due to one or more of these
risks, our business and operating results may bersely affected.

To offer voice or data services in certain of oarkets, we must either lease network capacity frmmmterconnect our network with the
infrastructure of, other communications companibés typically compete against us in those marketnil& to the risks summarized in the
prior paragraph, our reliance on these lease erdahnection arrangements limits our control olaerguality of our services and exposes us tc
the risk that the other carrier may be unwillingctmtinue or renew these arrangements in the fataterms favorable to us, or at all.

Conversely, certain of our operations carry a $icgmt amount of voice or data traffic for othemmmunications providers. Their reliance
on our services exposes us to the risk that thgytraasfer all or a portion of this traffic from ooetwork to networks built, owned or leasec
them, thereby reducing our revenues.

Our operations and financial performance coulddeesely affected if our relationships with anytlése other communications
companies are disrupted or terminated for any a#son, including if such other companies:

* go bankrupt or experience substantial financidlalifties;

« suffer work stoppages or other labor st

« challenge our right to receive payments or serviceter applicable regulations or the terms of austimg contract arrangements
« are otherwise unable or unwilling to make paymentsrovide services to

Reliance on other key suppliers, vendors and landids. We depend on a limited number of suppliers and eenfbr equipment and
services relating to our network infrastructurer @gaal exchange carrier networks consist of céwiifece and remote sites, all with advanced
digital switches. If any of these suppliers expaeinterruptions or other problems deliveringenvicing these network components on a
timely basis, our operations could suffer signffit. To the extent that proprietary technologyacupplier is an integral component of our
network, we may have limited flexibility to purcleakey network components from alternative suppbed may be adversely affected if third
parties assert patent infringement claims agaimssoppliers or us. Similarly, our data center afiens are materially reliant on leasing
significant amounts of space from landlords andstariial amounts of power from utility companiesd &eing able to renew these
arrangements from time to time on favorable tedmsddition, we rely on a limited number of softeatrendors to support our business
management systems. In the event it becomes negésseek alternative suppliers and vendors, wg Inesuinable to obtain satisfactory
replacement supplies, services, space or utilitiesconomically attractive terms, on a timely basisat all, which could increase costs or c:
disruptions in our services.

Reliance on governmental paymentsWe receive a material amount of revenue or govent subsidies under various government
programs or our service contracts with federateséad local agencies. Governmental agencies frglgueserve the right to terminate their
contracts for convenience, or to suspend or dedfmapanies from receiving future subsidies or cosraader certain circumstances. If our
governmental contracts are terminated for any rgamoif we are suspended or debarred from goventethprograms or contracts, our results
of operations and financial condition could be miatly adversely affected.

Reliance on financial institutions. We rely on 18 financial institutions to provids with short-term liquidity under our credit fatyli If
one or more of these lenders default on their fugpdommitments, our access to revolving creditddad adversely affected.
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Consolidation among other participants in the commigations industry may allow our competitors to cpete more effectively against us,
which could adversely affect our operating resuéiad financial condition.

The telecommunications, video and cable industréeg recently experienced, and continue to expegiesubstantial consolidation, and
some of our competitors have combined with othenroanications providers, resulting in larger conpesi that have greater financial and
business resources and broader service offeringthdf consolidation could increase competitivespoees, and could adversely affect our
operating results and financial condition, as vaslbur ability to service debt and pay other olidgye.

If we fail to extend or renegotiate our collectilmrgaining agreements with our labor unions as thexpire from time to time, or if ou
unionized employees were to engage in a striketheowork stoppage, our business and operating fésaould be materially harmed.

As of June 30, 2014 , approximately 38% of our @y@és are members of various bargaining units septed by the Communications
Workers of America or the International BrotherhaddElectrical Workers. From time to time, our lalagreements with unions expire and we
typically negotiate the terms of new bargainingeggnents. We may be unable to reach new agreeraedtsinion employees may engage in
strikes, work slowdowns or other labor actions,ahéould materially disrupt our ability to providervices and result in increased cost to us.
In addition, new labor agreements may impose digait new costs on us, which could impair our ficiahcondition or results of operations in
the future. To the extent they contain benefit [giows, these agreements may also limit our fldéigyhiio change benefits in response to
industry or competitive changes. In particular, post-employment benefits provided under theseemgeats could cause us to incur costs not
faced by many of our competitors, which could uéttely hinder our competitive position.

We have a significant amount of goodwill and othietangible assets on our balance sheet. If our godlli or other intangible assets become
impaired, we may be required to record a signifi¢arharge to earnings and reduce our stockholdergudy.

As of June 30, 2014 , approximately 55% of ourltotasolidated assets reflected on the consolidaddahce sheet included in this repor
consist of goodwill or other intangible assets. eingenerally accepted accounting principles, mb#iase intangible assets must be tested fo
impairment on an annual basis or more frequentlgnelrer events or circumstances indicate that tiaeiying value may not be recoverable.
From time to time (most recently for the third gearof 2013), we or our predecessors have recdedtgd non-cash charges to earnings in
connection with required reductions of the valuewf intangible assets. If our intangible assetsd@termined to be impaired in the future, we
may be required to record additional significaminitash charges to earnings during the period inhwthe impairment is determined.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to con#rpaying dividends at the current rate.

Decisions on whether, when and in which amountead&e any future dividend distributions will remainall times entirely at the
discretion of our Board of Directors, which resertiee right to change or terminate our dividendficas at any time and for any reason. Bi
on current circumstances, we plan to continue atnmeat dividend practices. However, you should ara that these practices are reviewed
periodically and are subject to change for reasioatsmay include any of the following factors:

* we may not have enough cash to pay such divildnd to changes in our cash requirements, capiésiding plans, stock repurchase
plans, cash flows or financial position;

« the effects of regulatory reform, including any eges to intercarrier compensation, Universal Serfignd or special access ru
 our desire to maintain or improve the credit ragiog our deb

 the amount of dividends that we may distribetedar shareholders is subject to restrictions uhdeisiana law and is limited by
restricted payment and leverage covenants in aditdiacilities and, potentially, the terms of dojure indebtedness that we may
incur; and

« the amount of dividends that our subsidiariey dhiatribute to us is subject to restrictions imgmdy state law, restrictions that have
been or may be imposed by state regulators in aimmewith obtaining necessary approvals for oupusitions, and restrictions
imposed by the terms of credit facilities applieatd certain subsidiaries and, potentially, thenteof any future indebtedness that
these subsidiaries may incur.

Our Board of Directors is free to modify or termtimaur dividend practices at any time and for aason. Our common shareholders
should be aware that they have no contractuallm@rdegal right to dividends.
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Our current dividend practices could limit our alify to deploy cash for other beneficial purposes.

The current practice of our Board of Directors &y gommon share dividends reflects a current ifganb distribute to our shareholdel
substantial portion of our cash flow. As a resuk, may not retain a sufficient amount of cash oy other transactions that could be
beneficial to our shareholders or debtholderspiticlyg stock buybacks, debt prepayments or capifsmrditures that strengthen our business.
In addition, our ability to pursue any material arpion of our business through acquisitions oreiased capital spending will depend more
than it otherwise would on our ability to obtairirthparty financing. We cannot assure you that diradncing will be available to us at terms
that are as favorable as those from which we pusiyabenefited, at terms that are acceptable torust all.

Portions of our property, plant and equipment areclated on property owned by third partie

Over the past few years, certain utilities, coofreea and municipalities in certain of the statesvhich we operate have requested
significant rate increases for attaching our ptartheir facilities. To the extent that these éeditare successful in increasing the amount we p:
for these attachments, our future operating costsnerease.

In addition, we rely on rights-of-way, colocatiograements and other authorizations granted by gavemtal bodies and other third
parties to locate our cable, conduit and other agtvequipment on their respective properties. if ahthese authorizations terminate or lapse,
our operations could be adversely affected.

We depend on key members of our senior managenmesnt

Our success depends largely on the skills, expegiand performance of a limited number of senificefs. Competition for senior
management in our industry is intense and we mag Héficulty retaining our current senior officess attracting new ones in the event of
terminations or resignations. For a discussiorirofiar retention concerns relating to our recemuasitions, please see the risks described
below under the heading “Risk Factors—Risks Refgtinour Recent Acquisitions.”

As a holding company, we rely on payments from ayerating companies to meet our obligatiol

As a holding company, substantially all of our imeand operating cash flow is dependent upon thenegs of our subsidiaries and their
distribution of those earnings to us in the formdividends, loans or other payments. As a resudtrely upon our subsidiaries to generate the
funds necessary to meet our obligations, includigpayment of amounts owed under our long-tern. @&l subsidiaries are separate and
distinct legal entities and have no obligation &y any amounts owed by us or, subject to limiteckpkions for tax-sharing or cash
management purposes, to make any funds availabie tm repay our obligations, whether by dividenoans or other payments. State law
applicable to each of our subsidiaries restriotsaimount of dividends that they may pay. Restmstithat have been or may be imposed by

restrictions imposed by credit agreements applecaibtertain of our subsidiaries may limit the amtoaf funds that our subsidiaries are
permitted to transfer to us, including the amourdieidends that may be paid to us. Moreover, dgits to receive assets of any subsidiary
upon its liquidation or reorganization will be effively subordinated to the claims of creditorghadt subsidiary, including trade creditors. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations—Liquidity arapal Resources” included
elsewhere in this report for further discussiothefse matters.

Risks Relating to our Recent Acquisitions
We may be unable to integrate successfully our r@beacquired operations and realize the anticipdtbenefits of our recent acquisitions.

We acquired Embarq, Qwest and Savvis during a lgu@yirmonth period between mid-2009 to mid-2011e§dracquisitions involved
the combination of companies which previously ofetas independent public companies. We have divatel will continue to devote,
significant management attention and resourcestégiating the business practices and operatio@&ofuryLink and the acquired companies.
We may encounter difficulties in the integratiolgess, including the following:

« the inability to successfully combine our busises in a manner that permits the combined comjgaaghieve the cost savings and
operating synergies anticipated to result fromabguisitions, either due to technological challengersonnel shortages, strikes or
otherwise, any of which would result in the antatgd benefits of the acquisitions not being redligartly or wholly in the time frame
anticipated or at all;

« delays or limitations in connection with offegimew products or providing current ones arisingafihe multiplicity of different
legacy systems, networks and processes used byétwhcompanies;
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 the complexities associated with managing thehined businesses out of several different locatamd integrating personnel from
multiple companies, while at the same time attengptid provide consistent, high-quality products aadrices under a unified culture;

« the difficulties of producing combined financiaformation using dispersed personnel with diffeneast practices, including the
attendant risk of errors;

» the complexities of combining companies withfetiént histories, regulatory restrictions, costictures, products, sales forces,
markets, marketing strategies, and customer bases;

« the failure to retain key employees, some of whomid be critical to integrating, operating or exgigng the companie
« potential unknown liabilities and unforeseen insexhexpenses or regulatory conditions associatibdtiag acquisitions; al

« performance shortfalls at one or all of the camips as a result of the diversion of managematteéstion caused by integrating the
companies’ operations.

In the last couple of years we have purchased akwtiter businesses to augment our hosting segtméegrating these newly-acquired
businesses into our hosting operations will gige tb similar challenges and risks.

As discussed further under “Business—Network Amgttitire” in Item 1 of Part | of our Annual Reportiearm 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013, we are currently undertakingrsdwzomplex, costly and time-consuming projectsinaplify and modernize our network,
which is an amalgam of our legacy network and #tevorks of companies we have acquired in the past.

For all these reasons, you should be aware thatowsining efforts to integrate these companiesharsihesses could distract our
management, disrupt our ongoing business or cheebasistencies in our products, services, starsjdaahtrols, procedures and policies, ar
which could adversely affect our ability to maimtaelationships with customers, vendors and empeye to achieve the anticipated benefits
of our recent acquisitions, or could otherwise aslely affect our business and financial results.

We may be unable to successfully adjust to the sai$al change in our markets and operations causeylour recent acquisitions.

Prior to our acquisition of Embarg, we providedhpipally voice and internet services to consumezrédominantly rural areas and sr
to mid-sized cities in 25 states. As a result afreeent acquisitions, we now provide a diversifiedhy of communications services to
residential, business, governmental and wholesastmers in a wide range of markets throughoutithiteed States and internationally. While
we believe we have adequately adjusted our stegegianagement, operating models and organizattma&tures to address these change
cannot assure you that further adjustments willo@tequired in the future.

Our acquisitions of Qwest and Savvis have increased exposure to the risks of operating internatialty.

Prior to 2011, substantially all of our operatiovere historically conducted within the continentalited States. Our acquisitions of
Qwest and Savvis in 2011 increased the importaht#ernational operations to our future operatiagrewth and prospects.

Our foreign operations are subject to varying degi& regulation in each of the foreign jurisdingdn which we provide services. Local
laws and regulations, and their interpretation amfbrcement, differ significantly among those jdiigions, and can change significantly over
time. Future regulatory, judicial and legislativeanges or interpretations may have a material adwffect on our ability to deliver services
within various foreign jurisdictions. Many of thefeeign laws and regulations relating to commutiices services are more restrictive than
U.S. laws and regulations, particularly those metpto content distributed over the Internet. Paaraple, the European Union has enacted a
data retention system that, once implemented byithehl member states, will involve requirementsetain certain Internet protocol, or IP,
data that could have an impact on our operatiofsiiope. Moreover, national regulatory framewotie are consistent with the policies and
requirements of the World Trade Organization havg cecently been, or are still being, enacted angncountries. Accordingly, many
countries are still in the early stages of providiar and adapting to a liberalized telecommun@aimarket. As a result, in these markets we
may encounter more protracted and difficult proceduo obtain licenses necessary to provide theétilof products we offer.
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In addition to these international regulatory risseme of the other risks inherent in conductingitbess internationally include:
* tax, licensing, currency, political or other busiseestrictions or requiremer

 import and export restrictior

« longer payment cycles and problems collecting actsoreceivable

 additional U.S. and other regulation of non-detizeoperations, including regulation under thedigm Corrupt Practices Act, or
FCPA, as well as other anti-corruption laws;

« economic, social and political instability, witte attendant risks of terrorism, kidnapping, eita, civic unrest and potential seizure
or nationalization of assets;

« fluctuations in currency exchange ra
« the ability to secure and maintain the necessaygipal and telecommunications infrastruct

« the inability to enforce contract rights eittuiere to underdeveloped legal systems or governnutiona that result in a deprivation of
contract rights;

« laws, policies or practices that limit the scap@perations that can legally or practicably baducted within any particular country;
and

« challenges in staffing and managing foreign opens
Any one or more of these factors could adversdlcabur international operations.

Moreover, in order to effectively compete in centiireign jurisdictions, it is frequently necessaryrequired to establish joint ventures,
strategic alliances or marketing arrangements lwithl operators, partners or agents. Reliance cal lwperators, partners or agents could
expose us to the risk of being unable to contreldtope or quality of our overseas services orymtsd or being held liable under the FCPA or
other anti-corruption laws for actions taken by suategic or local partners or agents even thaligbe partners or agents may not themselve
be subject to the FCPA or other applicable antitgaion laws. Any determination that we have vieththe FCPA or other antbrruption law:
could have a material adverse effect on our busjmesults of operations, reputation or prospects.

We expect to incur substantial expenses relatethscompletion of the integration of Qwest.

We have incurred, and expect to continue to insuibstantial expenses in connection with the integraf Qwest’s business, operations,
networks, systems, technologies, policies and phaes with our own. We have integrated a numbeuofystems, and we continue to work
towards completing the planned integration of @maining systems. Until this integration is comgtktwe cannot accurately predict the total
amount or the timing of our integration expenses.

Our acquisitions have increased our exposure to tieks of fluctuations in energy costs, power outgand availability of electrical
resources.

Through the acquisitions of Qwest and Savvis, westealded a significant number of data center taesli which are susceptible to
regional costs and supply of power and electrioa¥qr outages. In addition, our energy costs castifate significantly or increase for a variety
of reasons, including changes in legislation amgilietion. Several pending proposals designed tacedreenhouse emissions could
substantially increase our energy costs. As eneogis increase, we may not always be able to padsedncreased costs of energy to our
customers, which could harm our business. Our ousts’ demand for power may also exceed the powsadity in older data centers, which
may limit our ability to fully utilize these dataisters. Moreover, the increasing power demandsdafy{s servers may cause our demand for
power in certain of our data centers to exceedtipply available from third parties. Any one or mof these developments could adversely
affect our relationships with our customers andibirour ability to run our data centers, which dduhrm our business.

51




Our inability to renew data center leases, on faabte terms or at all, could have a negative impaatour financial results.

A significant majority of the data centers we acediin the Qwest and Savvis acquisitions are leasddchave lease terms that expire
between 2014 and 2031. The majority of these lgaisrgde us with the opportunity to renew the leaseur option for periods generally
ranging from five to ten years. Many of these realeoptions, however, provide that rent for the wealeperiod will be equal to the fair market
rental rate at the time of renewal. If the fair keirental rates are significantly higher than curent rental rates, we may be unable to offset
these costs by charging more for our services, wbizld have a negative impact on our financialltesAlso, it is possible that a landlord
may insist on other financially unfavorable reneteains or, where no further option to renew existsct not to renew altogether.

Any additional future acquisitions by us would sugat us to additional business, operating and findalaisks, the impact of which cannc
presently be evaluated, and could adversely impagtcapital structure or financial position

From time to time in the future we may pursue o#ejuisition opportunities. To the extent we acgjaitbusiness that is highly leveraged
or is otherwise subject to a high level of risk, nvay be affected by the currently unascertainables rof that business. In addition, the
financing of any future acquisition completed bycosild adversely impact our capital structure paficial position, as any such financing
would likely include the issuance of additionalsaties or the borrowing of additional funds. Extap required by law or applicable securities
exchange listing standards, we do not expect tmaskhareholders to vote on any proposed acaurisitiloreover, we generally do not
announce our acquisitions until we have enteremarmpreliminary or definitive agreement.

Risks Relating to Legal and Regulatory Matters

Any adverse outcome of the KPNQwest litigation,adher material litigation of Qwest, Savvis or Cemylink, could have a material advers
impact on our financial condition and operating re#ts, on the trading price of our securities and aur ability to access the capital
markets.

As described in Note 8—Commitments and Contingenttieour consolidated financial statements includdtem 1 of Part | of this
report, the KPNQwest lawsuit brought against u€bygill Financial Markets, Plc and Citibank, N.Aepents significant risk to us. The
plaintiffs seek hundreds of millions of dollarsdamages. We continue to vigorously defend ourseivédsat lawsuit.

We are currently unable to provide an estimat®dlse timing of the resolution of this matter. We@ive no assurance as to the impact:
on our financial results or financial condition tinaay ultimately result from the Cargill/Citibankwsuit. The ultimate outcome remains
uncertain, and a substantial settlement or judgrmettiis matter could have a significant impactusn The magnitude of such a settlement or
judgment could materially and adversely affect financial condition and ability to meet our debtigations, potentially impacting our cret
ratings, our ability to access capital markets amdcompliance with debt covenants. In additioe, tiagnitude of a settlement or judgment
cause us to draw down significantly on our cashiregs, which might force us to obtain additionadficing or explore other methods to
generate cash. Such methods could include issdidigg@al debt securities or selling assets.

There are other material proceedings pending agasnss described in the above-referenced Ndbegending on their outcome, any of
these matters could have a material adverse effeotr financial position or operating results. ¥ém give you no assurances as to the impac
of these matters on our operating results or fiimondition.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and arestefore exposed to restrictions on our operaticargd a variety of claims relating to such
regulation.

General. We are subject to significant regulation by i@ Federal Communications Commission (“FCC"), whietjulates interstate
communications, (ii) state utility commissions, athiregulate intrastate communications, and (iif)ouss foreign governments and internatic
bodies, which regulate our international operati@msnerally, we must obtain and maintain certisadf authority or licenses from these
bodies in most territories where we offer regulagedsices. We cannot assure you that we will beesssful in obtaining or retaining all licen
necessary to carry out our business plan, and, iévenare, the prescribed service standards anditons imposed on us in connection with
obtaining or acquiring control of these licensey nimapose on us substantial costs and limitations.afé also subject to numerous
requirements and interpretations under variougnatenal, federal, state and local laws, rules r@gdilations, which are often quite detailed
and occasionally in conflict with each other. Aatiagly, we cannot ensure that we are always cornsiti® be in compliance with all these
requirements at any single point in time. The ag=nesponsible for the enforcement of these lawkss and regulations may initiate inquiries
or actions based on customer complaints or on tveir initiative.
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Regulation of the telecommunications industry amntis to change rapidly, and the regulatory enviemtraaries substantially from
jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Notwithstanding a @ movement towards alternative regulation, atamitial portion of our local voice servic
revenue remains subject to FCC and state utilitgragssion pricing regulation, which periodically e@ggs us to pricing or earnings disputes
and could expose us to unanticipated price declinesrexchange carriers have filed complaintsariaus forums requesting reductions in our
access rates. In addition, several long distanceighers are disputing or refusing to pay amountedt us for carrying Voice over Internet
Protocol (“VolP”) traffic, or traffic they claim tbe VolP traffic. Similarly, some carriers are rg@fig to pay access charges for certain calls
between mobile and wireline devices routed throaiginterexchange carrier. There can be no assuthattuture regulatory, judicial or
legislative activities will not have a material &ise effect on our operations, or that regulatotkicd parties will not raise material issues with
regard to our compliance or noncompliance with i@pple regulations.

Risks associated with recent changes in federal relgtion . On October 27, 2011, the FCC adopted the Corkmetrica and
Intercarrier Compensation Reform order (“CAF ordléntended to reform the existing regulatory regimeecognize ongoing shifts to new
technologies, including VolP, and gradually re-direderal universal service funding to foster oravide broadband coverage. This initial
ruling provides for a multi-year transition oveethext decade as intercarrier compensation chargegduced, federal universal service
funding is explicitly targeted to broadband depl@ym and subscriber line charges paid by end-usgomers are gradually increased. We
expect these changes will substantially increasg#ite of reductions in the amount of switched scoevenues we receive in our wholesale
business, while creating opportunities for increaadederal Universal Service Fund (“USF”) andailetevenue streams. Several judicial
challenges to the CAF order are pending and additifuture challenges are possible, any of whiakicalter or delay the FCC's proposed
changes. In addition, based on the outcome of @@ proceedings, various state commissions may @enshanges to their universal service
funds or intrastate access rates. Moreover, FCCepudings relating to implementation of the Ordenam pending. For these and other
reasons, we cannot predict the ultimate impadhese proceedings at this time.

In addition, during the last few years CongrestherFCC has initiated various other changes, imetu@) broadband stimulus projects,
support funds and similar plans and (i) varioustimork neutrality” proposals. The FCC is also cdasing changes in the regulation of specia
access services. Any of these recent or penditigtimes could adversely affect our operationsimaricial results. Moreover, many of the
FCC'’s regulations adopted in recent years remaijestito judicial review and additional rulemakingsus increasing the difficulty of
determining the ultimate impact of these changessoand our competitors.

Risks of higher costs Regulations continue to create significant céstais. Challenges to our tariffs by regulatorshird parties or
delays in obtaining certifications and regulatopp@vals could cause us to incur substantial lagdladministrative expenses, and, if
successful, such challenges could adversely dffieatates that we are able to charge our customers.

Our business also may be impacted by legislatiahragulation imposing new or greater obligatioriatesl to regulations or laws related
to broadband deployment, bolstering homeland sigoaricyber security, increasing disaster recoveguirements, minimizing environmental
impacts, enhancing privacy, protecting intellecfur@perty rights of third parties, or addressingentissues that impact our business, including
the Communications Assistance for Law Enforcemestt(&hich requires communications carriers to emshat their equipment, facilities, a
services are able to facilitate authorized eledétrearveillance), and laws governing local numbentgbility and customer proprietary network
information requirements. We expect our compliat@®s to increase if future laws or regulationstiomre to increase our obligations to assist
other governmental agencies.

In addition, increased regulation of our supplessld increase our costs. For instance, if enharegualation of greenhouse gas emiss
increase our energy costs, the profitability of basting and other operations could be adversédetafd.

Risks of reduced flexibility . As a diversified full service incumbent local Baage carrier in most of our key markets, we have
traditionally been subject to significant regulatitvat does not apply to many of our competitohss Tegulation in many instances restricts ou
ability to change rates, to compete and to respapitily to changing industry conditions. As our ibess becomes increasingly competitive,
regulatory disparities between us and our compstitould impede our ability to compete.

Risks posed by other regulations All of our operations are also subject to a \gra environmental, safety, health and other
governmental regulations. We monitor our complianwié federal, state and local regulations govegriire management, discharge and
disposal of hazardous and environmentally sensitisterials. Although we believe that we are in chamge with these regulations, our
management, discharge or disposal of hazardousrannmentally sensitive materials might exposéousaims or actions that could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finarmatition and operating results.
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“Open Internet” regulation could limit our abilityto operate our high-speed data business profitadshyd to manage our broadband facilities
efficiently.

In order to continue to provide quality high-spekeda service at attractive prices, we believe weslribe continued flexibility to respond
to changing consumer demands, to manage bandwsdtiewefficiently for the benefit of all customensldo invest in our networks. In the p¢
the FCC adopted “net neutrality” regulations thaivided manageable operating guidelines to ensu@pen Internet. Because the FCC has
recently proposed new regulations that could eidlfiflard greater flexibility or more regulation, wannot assure you of the final terms of any
such regulations or their impact on us. Moreover cannot assure you that Congress will not passidgion to further address Open Internet
issues that could hamper our ability to operatedatia networks profitably, that restrict our algilio implement upgrades or network
management practices necessary to ensure quakigeeor that could otherwise negatively impact ability to compete effectively.

We may be liable for the material that content prders distribute over our network.

Although we believe our liability for third partpfiormation stored on or transmitted through oumvoeks is limited, the liability of
private network operators is impacted both by chantechnology and evolving legal principles. Agravate network provider, we could be
exposed to legal claims relating to third partyteom stored or transmitted on our networks. Suamtdd could involve allegations of
defamation, invasion of privacy or copyright infjgment, among other things. If we decide to implenaelditional measures to reduce our
exposure to these risks or if we are required ferdkourselves against these kinds of claims, ioantial results could be negatively affected.

We are subject to franchising requirements that ¢dimpede our expansion opportunities.

We may be required to obtain from municipal autfiesioperating franchises to install or expandiitees. Some of these franchises may
require us to pay franchise fees. These franchigiggirements generally apply to our fiber transpod competitive local exchange carrier
operations, and to our facilities-based video sewi These requirements could delay us in exparmdingperations or increase the costs of
providing these services.

We are exposed to risks arising out of recent Iégfion affecting U.S. public companies.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relatimptporate governance and public disclosure, dietuthe Sarbane®xley Act and th
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Praiadiict, and related regulations implemented thedeyrare increasing legal and
financial compliance costs and making some acatiwithore time consuming. Any failure to successfotlyimely complete annual assessment
of our internal controls required by Section 404haf Sarbanes-Oxley Act could subject us to sanstiw investigation by regulatory
authorities. Any such action could adversely affaat financial results or our reputation with int@s, lenders or others.

For a more thorough discussion of the regulat®syds that may affect our business, see “Regulatiohi2m 1 of Part | of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembefB13 .

Risks Affecting our Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our high debt levels pose risks to our viability dmay make us more vulnerable to adverse economit @ompetitive conditions, as well as
other adverse developments.

We continue to carry significant debt. As of Jufe 2014 , our consolidated debt was approximat2lyldillion . Approximately $4.7
billion of our consolidated debt, excluding caplidse and other obligations, matures over the @tkims following the date of this report,
which includes our $845 million of credit facilitlebt.

Our significant levels of debt can adversely affexin several other respects, including:
« limiting the ability of CenturyLink and its subsaties to access the capital mark
» exposing CenturyLink and its subsidiaries to tis& of credit rating downgrades, as described fulbeéow
« hindering our flexibility to plan for or react tthanging market, industry or economic conditi

« limiting the amount of cash flow available for fotuwoperations, acquisitions, dividends, stock relpases or other us



< making us more vulnerable to economic or industiyeturns, including interest rate increa

* placing us at a competitive disadvantage comparéeks leveraged competitc
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« increasing the risk that we will need to selfgities or assets, possibly on unfavorable teomseduce or terminate our dividend
payments, to meet payment obligations; or

* increasing the risk that we may not meet tharfoial covenants contained in our debt agreemerisiely make all required debt
payments.

The effects of each of these factors could be sified if we increase our borrowings.
Any failure to make required debt payments coutdpag other things, adversely affect our abiliteémduct operations or raise capital.

We expect to periodically require financing, and wannot assure you that we will be able to obtairck financing on terms that are
acceptable to us, or at all.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness tleaitend to refinance over the next several ygaiscipally through the issuance of
debt securities of CenturyLink, Qwest Corporatiofoth. Our ability to arrange additional financiwgl depend on, among other factors, our
financial position, performance, and credit ratirgs well as prevailing market conditions and offietors beyond our control. Prevailing
market conditions could be adversely affected Isyugtitions in domestic or overseas sovereign oraratp debt markets, contractions or
limited growth in the economy or other similar acheeeconomic developments in the U.S. or abroatability in the global financial markets
has from time to time resulted in periodic vol#ilin the capital markets. This volatility couldnlit our access to the credit markets, leading to
higher borrowing costs or, in some cases, the litabd obtain financing on terms that are as falde as those from which we previously
benefitted, on terms that are acceptable to uat all. Any such failure to obtain additional fircmg could jeopardize our ability to repay,
refinance or reduce our debt obligations.

We may also need to obtain additional financingarralvariety of other circumstances, including if:
» revenues and cash provided by operations de
« economic conditions weaken, competitive pressure®ase or regulatory requirements che
e we engage in any acquisitions or undertake subataatpital projects or other initiatives that iaase our cash requireme
< we are required to contribute a material amouriash to our pension pla
« we are required to begin to pay other pesirement benefits earlier than anticipa
« our payments of federal taxes increase faster gréater amounts than currently anticipate

« we become subject to significant judgments titesaents in one or more of the matters discussédbite 8—Commitments and
Contingencies to our consolidated financial state@smacluded elsewhere in this report.

For all the reasons mentioned above, we can givessorance that additional financing for any oséhpurposes will be available on
terms that are acceptable to us or at all.

In addition, our ability to borrow funds in the fmé will depend in part on the satisfaction of te@enants in our credit facilities and ot
debt agreements. If we are unable to satisfy thenfiial covenants contained in those agreemengsegarmable to generate cash sufficient to
make required debt payments, the parties to whorareéndebted could accelerate the maturity of sonal of our outstanding indebtedness.
Certain of our debt instruments have cross paymeiatult or cross acceleration provisions. Whengmgghese provisions could have a wider
impact on liquidity than might otherwise arise frandefault or acceleration of a single debt insgnmSee “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtiems—L.iquidity and Capital Resourcesfsewhere in this report for additional informat
about our indebtedness.

If we are unable to make required debt paymentsforance our debt, we would likely have to consiatther options, such as selling
assets, issuing additional securities, reducingmninating our dividend payments, cutting coststberwise reducing our cash requirements,
or negotiating with our lenders to restructuredpelicable debt. Our credit agreement, term loahtha indentures governing our senior notes
may restrict, or market or business conditions timait, our ability to do some of these things ondeable terms or at all.
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Any downgrade in the credit ratings of us or ourféiates could limit our ability to obtain future ihancing, increase our borrowing costs a
adversely affect the market price of our existinglit securities or otherwise impair our businessdncial condition and results of
operations.

Nationally recognized credit rating organizatioasé issued credit ratings relating to our long-telebt and the long-term debt of severa
of our subsidiaries that are below “investment gra@here can be no assurance that any ratingreessigp any of these debt securities will
remain in effect for any given period of time oatlany such ratings will not be lowered, susperatagithdrawn entirely by a rating agency if,
in that rating agency'’s judgment, circumstancesaant.

A downgrade of any of these credit ratings could:
« adversely affect the market price of some or abbwf outstanding debt or equity securil
« limit our access to the capital markets or othesvaidversely affect the availability of other nemaficing on favorable terms, if at

« trigger the application of restrictive covenaintgertain of our debt agreements or result in newore restrictive covenants in
agreements governing the terms of any future irethtess that we may incur;

« increase our cost of borrowing; ¢
* impair our business, financial condition and resoltoperation:

Under certain circumstances upon a change of confnwe will be obligated to offer to repurchase cairt of our outstanding debt securities,
which could have certain adverse ramifications.

If the credit ratings relating to certain of oungpterm debt securities are downgraded in the maspeified thereunder in connection
with a “change of control” of CenturyLink, then wall be required to offer to repurchase such delsusities. If, due to lack of cash, legal or
contractual impediments, or otherwise, we fail fi@ioto repurchase such debt securities, suchréatould constitute an event of default under
such debt securities, which could in turn constitudefault under other of our agreements relatirayur indebtedness outstanding at that time
Moreover, the existence of these repurchase cot&naay in certain circumstances render it moreadiff or discourage a sale or takeover of
us, or the removal of our incumbent directors.

Our debt agreements and the debt agreements ofsulosidiaries allow us to incur significantly moreetht, which could exacerbate the other
risks described in this report.

The terms of our debt instruments and the debtunstnts of our subsidiaries permit additional inddbess. Additional debt may be
necessary for many reasons, including those disedusisove. Incremental borrowings that impose amititifinancial risks could exacerbate
other risks described in this report.

Our business requires us to incur substantial caiand operating expenses, which reduce our avaliéafree cash flow.

Our business is capital intensive, and we antieipiaat our capital requirements will continue tosignificant in the coming years. As
discussed further under “Risk Factors—Risks AffagtOur Business—Increases in broadband usage mag ca&twork capacity limitations,
resulting in service disruptions, reduced capawitglower transmission speeds for our customensyeased bandwidth consumption by
consumers and businesses have placed increasedateorathe transmission capacity of our networfksel determine that our networks must
be expanded to handle these increased demandsaywbanequired to make substantial capital experest even though there is no assuranc
that the return on our investment will be satisfagtin addition, many of our growth and modernizatnitiatives are capital intensive and
changes in technology could require further spemdim addition to investing in expanded networksyrproducts or new technologies, we
must from time to time replace some of the equipntieat supports our traditional services as thaigent ages, even though the revenue
base from those services is not growing. While ekele that our planned level of capital expeneisuwvill meet both our maintenance and
core growth requirements, this may not be the fad®mands on our network continue to accelerawtoer circumstances underlying our
expectations change. Increased spending could, gustber things, adversely affect our operating nms;gcash flows, results of operations i
financial position.

Similarly, we continue to anticipate incurring stavdial operating expenses to support our incumberntices and growth initiatives.
Although we have successfully reduced certain ofoperating expenses over the past few years, webmanable to further reduce these
costs, even if revenues in some of our lines oirt@ss are decreasing. If so, our operating masgithée adversely impacted.
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We cannot assure you whether, when or in what amtauwe will be able to use our net operating lossasywhen they will be depleted.

At December 31, 2013, we had approximately $2I®biof federal net operating losses, or NOLs, athielate primarily to pre-
acquisition losses of Qwest. Under certain circamsts, these NOLs can be used to offset our firderal and certain taxable income.

The acquisitions of Qwest and Savvis caused “ovimigichanges” under federal tax laws relating toube of NOLs. As a result, these
laws could limit our ability to use these NOLs amdtain other deferred tax attributes. Furthertitimns could apply if we are deemed to
undergo an ownership change in the future. Despile we expect to use substantially all of thes§# Bland certain other deferred tax attrib
as an offset to our federal future taxable incom@®l5, although the timing of that use will depemdn the consolidated group’s future
earnings and future tax circumstances. If and wherNOLs are fully utilized, we expect that the ambof our cash flow dedicated to the
payment of federal taxes will increase substantiall

Increases in costs for pension and healthcare betsefior our active and retired employees may redwes profitability and increase ou
funding commitments

With approximately 47,000 current employees, anat@amately 66,000 pension retirees and approxim&@®,000 former employees
with vested benefits as of December 31, 2013 ppaticg in our benefit plans, the costs of pensind healthcare benefits for our active and
retired employees have a significant impact onpafitability. Our costs of maintaining our pensiand healthcare plans, and the future
funding requirements for these plans, are affebjeskeveral factors, most of which are outside amtrol, including:

» decreases in investment returns on funds held bpension and other benefit plan tru
« changes in prevailing interest rates and theodist rate used to calculate pension and otherrptistment expense
« increases in healthcare costs generally or claihmited under our healthcare plans specific

« the continuing implementation of the PatienttBction and Affordable Care Act, and the relatembneiliation act and regulations
promulgated thereunder;

* increases in the number of retirees who electdeive lump sum benefit paymet
< changes in plan benefits; ¢
« changes in funding laws or regulatic

Increased costs under these plans could redugarofitability and increase our funding commitmetttour pension plans. Any future
material cash contributions could have a negatiygaict on our liquidity by reducing our cash flows.

As of December 31, 2013, our pension plans anathar post-retirement benefit plans were substiyntinderfunded from an
accounting standpoint. See Note 8—Employee Benefitgir consolidated financial statements incluideaur Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2013 . For mooerimdtion on our obligations under our defined biéqefnsion plans and other post-
retirement benefit plans, please see “Managem&itsussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations—Liquidity and
Capital Resources—Pension and Post-retirement Béigfgations” included in our Annual Report Foffl-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013 .

Other Risks

If conditions or assumptions differ from the judgmeés, assumptions or estimates used in our critieacounting policies, our consolidate
financial statements and related disclosures coble materially affected

The preparation of financial statements and reldigclosures in conformity with U.S. generally gutesl accounting principles requires
management to make judgments, assumptions andagssitinat affect the amounts reported in our caeteld financial statements and
accompanying notes. Our critical accounting poticighich are described in “Management’s Discusaiuth Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations—Critical Accounting Fekcand Estimates” in Item 7 of Part Il of our AahReport on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2013, describe those signifezaounting policies and methods used in the patioa of our consolidated financial
statements that are considered “critical” becaheg tequire judgments, assumptions and estimaa¢srtaterially impact our consolidated
financial statements and related disclosures. fesalt, if future events or assumptions differ gfigantly from the judgments, assumptions anc



estimates in our critical accounting policies, thesents or assumptions could have a material ingraour consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures.
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We face hurricane and other natural disaster riskghich can disrupt our operations and cause us mair substantial additional capital an
operating costs.

A substantial number of our facilities are locaiteérlorida, Alabama, Louisiana, Texas, North CaraliSouth Carolina and other coastal
states, which subjects them to the risks associaitdsevere tropical storms, hurricanes and topeagdincluding downed telephone lines,
flooded facilities, power outages, fuel shortagisnaged or destroyed property and equipment, ankl imerruptions. Although we maintain
property and casualty insurance on our plant (eiatpour outside plant) and may under certain cvstances be able to seek recovery of <
additional costs through increased rates, onlyriguoof our additional costs directly related teck hurricanes and natural disasters have
historically been recoverable. We cannot predicttiver we will continue to be able to obtain inseefor hazard-related damages or, if
obtainable and carried, whether this insuranceheladequate to cover our losses. In addition,xpecat any insurance of this nature to be
subject to substantial deductibles and to providepfemium adjustments based on claims. Any futiazard-related costs and work
interruptions could adversely affect our operatiand our financial condition.

Tax audits or changes in tax laws could adverseffeat us.

Like all large businesses, we are subject to fragjard regular audits by the Internal Revenue 8Seras well as state and local tax
authorities. These audits could subject us toitdilities if adverse positions are taken by thteseauthorities.

We believe that we have adequately provided foctaxingencies. However, our tax audits and exatioing.may result in tax liabilities
that differ materially from those that we have mgiaed in our consolidated financial statementsaBee the ultimate outcomes of all of these
matters are uncertain, we can give no assuranevasether an adverse result from one or moreahtiwvill have a material effect on our
financial results.

Effective for tax years beginning after 2012, Trexpayer Relief Act of 2012 results in certain higheme taxpayers being subject to
increased tax rates on dividends and capital gaidditionally, these high-income taxpayers are alsbject to a 3.8% Medicare tax on net
investment income. These or other potential in@eas tax rates could reduce demand for our stehich could potentially depress its trading
price.

Our agreements and organizational documents and liggble law could limit another party’s ability tacquire us.

A number of provisions in our agreements and omgitinal documents and various provisions of applie law may delay, defer or
prevent a future takeover of CenturyLink unlesstti@over is approved by our Board of Directors. &atditional information, please see our
Registration Statement on Form 8-A/A filed with tBEC July 1, 2009. This could deprive our sharedrsldf any related takeover premium.
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ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In February 2013, our Board of Directors authoriteglrepurchase of up to an aggregate of $2 bitifoour outstanding common shares.
This repurchase program was completed on May 2B4.2@ February 2014, our Board of Directors auttest a new 24 -month program to
repurchase up to an aggregate of $1 billion ofcutstanding common shares, which took effect on R&y2014, immediately upon the
completion of the above-described 2013 repurchesgram. During the three months ended June 30, 20®&4repurchased approximately 4.5
million shares of our outstanding common stockhigdpen market under our old and new stock repaecheograms. These shares were
repurchased for an aggregate market price of $lii@mor an average purchase price of $35.10 pares The common stock repurchased ha
been retired.

The following table contains information about stsaof our previously-issued common stock that weperchased under our old and
new stock repurchase programs:

Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Shares Purchased as Value of Shares That
Average Price Part of Publicly May Yet Be Purchased
Total Number of Paid Per Announced Plans or Under the Plans or
Shares Purchased Share Programs Programs ®
Period
April 2014®@ 2,168,18. $ 33.6( 2,168,18 % 1,041,446,66
May 2014® 1,246,82! 35.97 1,246,82! 996,666,74
June 2014" 1,130,85 37.0¢ 1,130,85 954,762,007
Total 4,545 ,86: 35.1( 4,545,86;

(1) Aggregates the value of shares available for pwehader the old and new stock repurchase |

(2) The total number of shares purchased in April 2&®4from the 2013 stock repurchase prog

(3) The total number of shares purchased in MaytZtbm the 2013 stock repurchase program were7126% , with an average purchase price of $35te.total number of
shares purchased in May 2014 from the 2014 stqukrchase program were 89,564 , with an averagénpsecprice of $37.22 .

(4) The total number of shares purchased in June 2@l#an the 2014 stock repurchase prog

The following table contains information about s#saof our previously-issued common stock that watveld from delivering during the
second quarter of 2014 to employees to satisfy thriobligations related to stock-based awards:

Total Number of

Shares Withheld Average Price Paid
for Taxes Per Share
Period
April 2014 51,09¢ $ 33.11
May 2014 83,57: 37.31
June 2014 19,90¢ 36.91
Total 154,57:
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
Exhibits identified in parentheses below are omWiith the SEC and are incorporated herein by eefa. All other exhibits are provided
as part of this electronic submission.

Exhibit
Number

Description

21

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of ltgct@6, 2008, by and among CenturyLink, Inc., Eml&@orporation and Cajun
Acquisition Company (incorporated by reference xbigit 99.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report Borm 8-K (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exg@@ommission on October 30, 2008).

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as ofl 212010, by and among CenturyLink, Inc., itssdlary SB44 Acquisition
Company, and Qwest Communications International(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Geyttink, Inc.'s Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed witte Securities and Exchange Commission on Apri®10).

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as ofl 262011, by and among CenturyLink, Inc., SAVVIS;. and Mimi
Acquisition Company (incorporated by reference xdiBit 2.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report Barm 8-K (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exa@@ommission on April 27, 2011).

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatib@enturyLink, Inc., as amended through May 2B, 2(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s @nt Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) fileidh the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 30, 2012).

Bylaws of CenturyLink, Inc., as amended arsfated through May 28, 2014 (incorporated by refeeeo Exhibit 3.1 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K éANo. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Ewde Commission on
June 2, 2014).

Form of common stock certificate (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 4.10 of CenturyLink, IsdRegistration Statement on
Form S-3 filed with the Securities and Exchange @dssion on March 2, 2012 (Registration No. 333- 883

Instruments relating to CenturyLink, Inc.'syBleing Credit Facility.

a. Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, datetiAygril 6, 2012, by and among CenturyLink, Inadathe lenders
and agents named therein (incorporated by referenEghibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Repon Form 8-K
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on April 11, 2012).

b. Guarantee Agreement, dated as of April 6, 26§2nd among the original guarantors named thémsdorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s @nt Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) fileidh the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 112204s assumed by two additional guarantors undeasaumption
agreement, dated as of May 23, 2013 (incorporayaeference to Exhibit 4.2(b) of CenturyLink, IscQuarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June @03 ZFile No. 001-07784) filed with the Securitasd Exchange
Commission on August 8, 2013).

Instruments relating to CenturyLink, Inc.'shidoan.

a. Credit Agreement, dated as of April 18, 2032abd among CenturyLink, Inc., the several bankkather financial
institutions or entities from time to time partibgreto, and CoBank, ACB, as administrative agieicb(porated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s @nt Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) fileidh the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 202201

b. Guarantee Agreement, dated as of April 18, 2B§2nd among the original guarantors named th€hecorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s @nt Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) fileidh the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 202204s assumed by two additional guarantors undeasaumption
agreement, dated as of May 23, 2013 (incorporayaeference to Exhibit 4.3(b) of CenturyLink, IscQuarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June @03 ZFile No. 001-07784) filed with the Securitaasd Exchange
Commission on August 8, 2013).

Instruments relating to CenturyLink, Inc.'sje senior debt®

a. Form of Indenture, by and between Century Telap Enterprises, Inc. (currently named CenturyLink.) and First
American Bank & Trust of Louisiana, as Trustee diporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Century,ilmc.'s
Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. Ne53915) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cagsian on
March 31, 1994).

(). Form of 7.2% Senior Notes, Series D, due 202&orporated by reference to Exhibit 4.27 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K the year ended December 31, 1995 (File No. 001-4)778
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMarch 18, 1996).

(1) Certain of the items in Sections 4.4, 4.5 and B.6nfit supplemental indentures or other instruragaverning debt that has been retired, or (iBrés
trustees who may have been replaced, acquiredemted by similar changes. In accordance with 16&h(b) (4) (iii) (A) of Regulation S-K, copies of
certain instruments defining the rights of holdafrsertain of our longerm debt are not filed herewith. Pursuant to teg@ulation, we hereby agree to furn
a copy of any such instrument to the SEC upon stque
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Number

Description

(ii). Form of 6.875% Debentures, Series G, dueB2(iacorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fhe year ended December 31, 1997 (File No. 001-4)778
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMarch 16, 1998).

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Fatyri4, 2005, by and between CenturyTel, Inc. éntly named
CenturyLink, Inc.) and Regions Bank, as Trustesigiating and outlining the terms and condition€ehturyLink's
5% Senior Notes, Series M, due 2015 (incorporayeatference to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'sr@&nt Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 000-50260) filed with the Sedig$ and Exchange Commission on February 15, 2005).

(). Form of 5% Senior Notes, Series M, due 20aBdrporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit &f
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K é¢ANo. 000-50260) filed with the Securities and Eamde
Commission on February 15, 2005).

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Maé; 2007, by and between CenturyTel, Inc. (culyearamed
CenturyLink, Inc.) and Regions Bank, as Trustesigiating and outlining the terms and condition€ehturyLink's
6.0% Senior Notes, Series N, due 2017 and 5.5%p6Biotes, Series O, due 2013 (incorporated by eefa to
Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report Borm 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Seities and
Exchange Commission on March 29, 2007).

(). Form of 6.0% Senior Notes, Series N, due 28dd 5.5% Senior Notes, Series O, due 2013 (incatpd by
reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.1 of Centurykininc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. QA784)
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMarch 29, 2007).

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Sepéz 21, 2009, by and between CenturyTel, Incréeily named
CenturyLink, Inc.) and Regions Bank, as Trustesigiating and outlining the terms and condition€ehturyLink's
7.60% Senior Notes, Series P, due 2039 and 6.15fl6r¢otes, Series Q, due 2019 (incorporated bgregice to
Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report Borm 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Seities and
Exchange Commission on September 22, 2009).

(). Form of 7.60% Senior Notes, Series P, due92218] 6.15% Senior Notes, Series Q, due 2019 (wocated by
reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.1 of Centurykininc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. Q4784)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorseptember 22, 2009).

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 16n2011, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. and BegBank, as
Trustee, designating and outlining the terms amtlitimns of CenturyLink's 5.15% Senior Notes, Sefe due 2017
and 6.45% Senior Notes, Series S, due 2021 (incaugub by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of CenturyLinkg.Is Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed witte Securities and Exchange Commission on Jun2(1f,).

(). Form of 5.15% Senior Notes, Series R, due72&id 6.45% Senior Notes, Series S, due 2021 (ocated by
reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.2 of Centurykininc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. Q4784)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodune 16, 2011).

Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as oEMa®R, 2012, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. andiéhs Bank, as
Trustee, designating and outlining the terms amdlitimns of CenturyLink's 5.80% Senior Notes, Sefiedue 2022
and 7.65% Senior Notes, Series U, due 2042 (incatpd by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLinkisrrent Report
on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Seities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2012).

(). Form of 5.80% Senior Notes, Series T, due2é2d 7.65% Senior Notes, Series U, due 2042 (pncated by
reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.1 of Centurykininc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 0WA784)
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMarch 12, 2012).

Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Madg 2013, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. andi®e Bank, as

Trustee, designating and outlining the terms amdlitions of CenturyLink's 5.625% Senior Notes, 8eW¥, due 2020

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Ceptimk's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001784) filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission on Marc@13).

(). Form of 5.625% Senior Notes, Series V, du@@ncorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exthibl of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K éMo. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Ede
Commission on March 21, 2013).

Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Ndy&am27, 2013, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. Radions Bank, as

Trustee, designating and outlining the terms amdlitions of CenturyLink's 6.75% Senior Notes, Sek¢, due 2023

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Ceptimk's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001784) filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission on Nove2ihe2013).
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0] Form of 6.75% Senior Notes, Series W, due 202&rporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhiil of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K é¢ANo. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Eamde
Commission on November 27, 2013).

4.5 Instruments relating to indebtedness of affis of Qwest Communications International, Inc.

a.

Indenture, dated as of April 15, 1990, by aetivieen The Mountain States Telephone and Teledtapipany
(currently named Qwest Corporation) and The Firtidhal Bank of Chicago (incorporated by referetacExhibit 4.2
of Qwest Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10sKthe year ended December 31, 2002 (File No. BK0) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onalgril, 2004).

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofil&#, 1991, by and between U S WEST Communicatibomns
(currently named Qwest Corporation) and The Fiatidhal Bank of Chicago (incorporated by referetace
Exhibit 4.3 of Qwest Corporation's Annual ReportFrm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (Fi
No. 001-03040) filed with the Securities and Exa@@ommission on January 13, 2004).

Indenture, dated as of April 15, 1990, by aatieen Northwestern Bell Telephone Company (prestecdo Qwest
Corporation) and The First National Bank of Chicéigcorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5(b) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period enlieaich 31, 2012 (File No. 001-07784) filed with tBecurities and
Exchange Commission on May 10, 2012).

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofil&#, 1991, by and between U S WEST Communicatibomns
(currently named Qwest Corporation) and The Fiatidhal Bank of Chicago (incorporated by referetace
Exhibit 4.3 of Qwest Corporation's Annual ReportFrm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (Fi
No. 001-03040) filed with the Securities and Exa@@ommission on January 13, 2004).

Indenture, dated as of June 29, 1998, by armhgrd S WEST Capital Funding, Inc. (currently nan@edest Capital
Funding, Inc.), U S WEST, Inc. (predecessor to Quasnmunications International Inc.) and The Fitational Bank
of Chicago, as trustee (incorporated by refereadexhibit 4(a) of U S WEST, Inc.'s Current Repartfeorm 8-K (File
No. 001-14087) filed with the Securities and Ex@@ommission on November 18, 1998).

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as oBJ8®, 2000, by and among U S WEST Capital Fundimg,
(currently named Qwest Capital Funding, Inc.), WEST, Inc. (predecessor to Qwest Communications
International Inc.) and Bank One Trust Company, Na& trustee (incorporated by reference to ExHili0 of
Qwest Communications International Inc.'s Quart&#port on Form 10-Q for the period ended Jun€G00
(File No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities dexthange Commission on August 11, 2000).

Indenture, dated as of October 15, 1999, bybatdeen US West Communications, Inc. (currentipead Qwest
Corporation) and Bank One Trust Company, N.A.rastée (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4f{pwest
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for tharyended December 31, 1999 (File No. 001-0304&) fivith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 3, 2000

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of yaid 9, 2004, by and between Qwest CorporatiorlASdBank
National Association (incorporated by referenc&xdibit 4.22 of Qwest Communications Internatiolme.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period en8egdtember 30, 2004 (File No. 001-15577) filed wlith
Securities and Exchange Commission on Novembed®})2

(ii). Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as afelti7, 2005, by and between Qwest Corporation aBd Rank
National Association (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 4.2 of Qwest Communications Internationad.Is
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-15577dilwith the Securities and Exchange Commission on
June 23, 2005).

(iii). Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated adwodust 8, 2006, by and between Qwest Corporatiahlas. Bank
National Association (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 4.1 of Qwest Communications Internationad.Is
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-15577dilwith the Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 8, 2006).

(iv). Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofyM8&, 2007, by and between Qwest Corporation ai&l Bank
National Association (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 4.1 of Qwest Communications Internationad.Is
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-15577dilwith the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 18, 2007).

(V). Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofilA®, 2009, by and between Qwest Corporation arsl Bank
National Association (incorporated by referenc&xaibit 4.1 of Qwest Communications Internationad.Is
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-15577dilwith the Securities and Exchange Commission on
April 13, 2009).
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(vi). Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated asiné 8, 2011, by and between Qwest CorporatiorJaBidBank
National Association (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 4.8 of Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A (File N001-
03040) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on June 7, 2011).

(vi).  Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated aSetember 21, 2011, by and between Qwest Corporatid U.S.
Bank National Association (incorporated by refegtw Exhibit 4.9 of Qwest Corporation's Form 8-Al€F
No. 001-03040) filed with the Securities and Exa@@ommission on September 20, 2011).

(viii).  Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated a®atober 4, 2011, by and between Qwest CorporationhS. Bank
National Association (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 4.1 of Qwest Corporation's Current Repart o
Form 8-K (File No. 001-03040) filed with the Seti#$ and Exchange Commission on October 4, 2011).

(ix) Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as oilApr2012, by and between Qwest Corporation arfl Bank
National Association (incorporated by referenc@test Corporation's Form 8-A (File No. 001-0304@&¢f
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Mag; 2012).

x) Eleventh Supplemental Indenture, dated asioé 25, 2012, by and between Qwest Corporatiora8dBank
National Association (incorporated by referenc&xdibit 4.12 of Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A (File
No. 001-03040) filed with the Securities and Exg@@@ommission on June 22, 2012).

(xi) Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, dated as @y\3, 2013, by and between Qwest Corporation agd Bank
National Association (incorporated by referenc®test Corporation's Form 8-A (File No. 001-0304(@df
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on R3y2013).

4.6 Instruments relating to indebtedness of Emkamgporation.

a.

Indenture, dated as of May 17, 2006, by andédet Embarg Corporation and J.P. Morgan Trust Cosnddational
Association, a national banking association, estéei(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 mfoarq Corporation's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32732dilwith the Securities and Exchange Commission ap 18,
2006).

7.082% Global Note due 2016 of Embarq Corponafincorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to EngbCorporation's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmm31, 2006 (File No. 001-32372) filed with thec@eties and
Exchange Commission on March 9, 2007).

7.995% Global Note due 2036 of Embarq Corponatincorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to EngbCorporation's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmm31, 2006 (File No. 001-32372) filed with thec@eties and
Exchange Commission on March 9, 2007).

4.7 Intercompany debt instruments.

a.

Revolving Promissory Note, dated as of Apri2@]12 pursuant to which Embarq Corporation maydwifrom an
affiliate of CenturyLink, Inc. up to $2.5 billionnca revolving basis (incorporated by referencexbifiit 4.7(a) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the period ended September 30, 2012 (File Nb-GXY84) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Nex 8, 2012).

Revolving Promissory Note, dated as of April 2812, pursuant to which Qwest Corporation maydwifrom an
affiliate of CenturyLink, Inc. up to $1.0 billionnca revolving basis (incorporated by referencexbifiit 4.7(b) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the period ended September 30, 2012 (File Nb-0XY84) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Nibex 8, 2012).

Revolving Promissory Note, dated as of SepterdBe2012, pursuant to which Qwest Communications
International, Inc. may borrow from an affiliate @enturyLink, Inc. up to $3.0 billion on a revolgitasis (incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 4.7(c) of CenturyLink IscAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year endeddbdmer 31, 2012
(File No. 001-07844) filed with the Securities &xthange Commission on March 1, 2013).

10.1 Qualified Employee Benefit Plans of Centuni{,ilnc. (excluding several narrow-based qualifighs that cover union
employees or other limited groups of employees).
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a.

CenturyLink Dollars & Sense 401(k) Plan andstras amended and restated through December @@ (2@orporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of CenturyLink, IscAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year endeddémnber 31,
2006 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securitasd Exchange Commission on March 1, 2007), as deteby the
First Amendment and the Second Amendment theratdy dated as of December 31, 2007 (incorporatedfeyence t
Exhibit 10.1(a) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, Z60&

No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exad@@ommission on February 29, 2008), as amendéaebVhird
Amendment thereto dated as of November 20, 20@®1orated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of Ceyitink, Inc.'s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmm31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with thec@eties and
Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009), as agdelmylthe Fourth Amendment thereto dated as of 30n2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fbe period ended
June 30, 2009 (File No. 0017784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on August 7, 2009), as amen
by the Fifth Amendment thereto dated as of Septerhbe2009 (incorporated by reference to ExhibitL{#) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-4)7f8d with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Mar@®10), as amended by the Sixth Amendment therateddas of
December 30, 2009 (incorporated by reference toliixt0.1(a) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report Borm 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2009 (File No.@0A84) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on
March 1, 2010), as amended by the Seventh Amendtiergto, effective May 20, 2010 (incorporated &fgrence to
Exhibit 10.1(a) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly et on Form 10-Q for the period ended Septembge2@00 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exg@@ommission on November 5, 2010) and as amendéteb
Eighth Amendment thereto, effective January 1, 2@idorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of

CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-4)7f8d with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Mar@@11).

CenturyLink Union 401(k) Plan and Trust, as adesl and restated through December 31, 2006 (iocated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of CenturyLink, IndAsnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dewmer 31, 2006
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on March 1, 2007), as amenyléuebFirst
Amendment thereto dated as of May 29, 2007 (inaared by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of Century,imc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period enlieaich 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with tBecurities and
Exchange Commission on May 7, 2008), as amendehebgecond Amendment thereto dated as of Decemb@087
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foetkiear ended
December 31, 2007 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on Febri&ard8), as
amended by the Third Amendment thereto dated &mweémber 20, 2008 (incorporated by reference taltixh0.1(b)
of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 104 the year ended December 31, 2008 (File No. GrB4) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onwgelr27, 2009), as amended by the Fourth Amendthergto
dated as of June 30, 2009 (incorporated by referam&xhibit 10.1(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s QuatyeReport on

Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2009 (Fde001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exam@ommission
on August 7, 2009), as amended by the Fifth Amemdrtiereto dated as of September 15, 2009 (incatpdrby
reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of CenturyLink, IndAsnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dewmer 31, 2009
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on March 1, 2010), as amengdkbSixth
Amendment thereto, dated as of December 30, 20@8rforated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of Qeyltink, Inc.'s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dduem31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with thec@eties and
Exchange Commission on March 1, 2010), as amengd&uaebSeventh Amendment thereto, effective May221,0
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fbe period ended
September 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed wtlith Securities and Exchange Commission on Novei&d10)
and as amended by the Eighth Amendment theretgtafé January 1, 2011 (incorporated by refereadexhibit 10.1
(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on FormKdor the year ended December 31, 2010 (File Nid.-07784)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioivarch 1, 2011).
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C.

CenturyLink Retirement Plan, as amended andtasbthrough December 31, 2006 (incorporated feyeace to
Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2606

No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exad@&ommission on March 1, 2007), as amended by Ament
No. 1 thereto dated as of April 2, 2007 (incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLiimg.'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March?808 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange
Commission on May 7, 2008), as amended by Amendiden® thereto dated as of December 31, 2007 (gorated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, I'scAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year endeddémber 31,
2007 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteexd Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008mesnded by
Amendment No. 3 thereto dated as of October 248 Zd@orporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) @DeyLink, Inc.'s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmam31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with thec@eties and
Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009), as aadeloyl Amendment No. 4 dated as of June 30, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fbe period ended
June 30, 2009 (File No. 0017784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on August 7, 2009), as amen
by Amendment No. 5 thereto dated as of Septemhe2(® (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.dfc
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-4)/figéd with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Mar@010), as amended by Amendment No. 6 thereto, deted
December 30, 2009 (incorporated by reference toliixt0.1(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report &orm 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2009 (File No.@0A84) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on
March 1, 2010), as amended by Amendment No. 7 tineséective at various dates during 2010 (incoaped by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, In®Qsarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period enSedtember 30,
2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on November 5, 2010) aranended
by Amendment No. 8 thereto, effective January 1,12(ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-4@)/fi&@d with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Mar@911).

10.2 Stock-based Incentive Plans and AgreemerE&ofuryLink

a.

Amended and Restated 1983 Restricted Stock Plamasded and restated through February 23, 20&6rfiarated b
reference to Exhibit 10.2(a) of CenturyLink, IndAsnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwer 31, 2009
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities &xthange Commission on March 1, 2010).

Amended and Restated 2000 Incentive Compemnstan, as amended through May 23, 2000 (incoredray
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s@@uerly Report on Form 10-Q for the period endeteJs0, 2000 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exad@@ommission on August 11, 2000) and amendmeretthdated
as of May 29, 2003 (incorporated by reference thiltix10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report Form 10-Q for
the period ended June 30, 2003 (File No. 001-7#iR4) with the Securities and Exchange Commissioagust 14,
2003).

0] Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant t® 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan and dated E&pf21,
2001, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. aaafficers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit2{8) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fhe year ended December 31, 2001 (File No. 001-4)778
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMarch 15, 2002).

(i) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanttite 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan and dated as of
February 25, 2002, entered into between Centuryllimk and its officers (incorporated by referetwe
Exhibit 10.2(d) (ii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annu&eport on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQ2
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities &xthange Commission on March 27, 2003).

Amended and Restated 2002 Directors Stock @ftlan, dated as of February 25, 2004 (incorporaye@ference to

Exhibit 10.2(e) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2608

No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exad@@ommission on March 12, 2004) and amendmergtiheated

as of October 24, 2008 (incorporated by refereadexhibit 10.2(d) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repon Form 1K

for the year ended December 31, 2008 (File No.@0A84) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on

February 27, 2009).

0] Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant te thregoing plan, entered into between CenturyLing, in
connection with options granted to the outsideales as of May 10, 2002 (incorporated by referdnce
Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q for the period ended September G022
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dexthange Commission on November 14, 2002).
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(ii)

(iif)

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanthe foregoing plan, entered into between CenturyLiin&. in
connection with options granted to the outsideaioes as of May 9, 2003 (incorporated by referdoce
Exhibit 10.2(e) (ii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s AnnuBleport on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeGQ3
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities &xthange Commission on March 12, 2004).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuantte foregoing plan, entered into between CenturgLlinc. in
connection with options granted to the outsideaioes as of May 7, 2004 (incorporated by referdoce
Exhibit 10.2(d) (iii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annud&eport on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembefBa5
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities &xthange Commission on March 16, 2006).

d. Amended and Restated 2002 Management Incebtwgensation Plan, dated as of February 25, 20@érfiorated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) of CenturyLink, IncAsnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwer 31, 2003
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on March 12, 2004) and ameniinereto
dated as of October 24, 2008 (incorporated by eefsg to Exhibit 10.2(e) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s AmhiReport on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200& (Rd. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Earaie
Commission on February 27, 2009).

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant te thregoing plan, entered into between CenturyLin&, and
certain of its officers and key employees at vasidates during 2002 following May 9, 2002 (incogied by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s@pterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 2002 (File No. 00Z784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossinh on November 1.
2002).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuantaecegoing plan and dated as of February 24, 20G8rexhinto
between CenturyLink, Inc. and its officers (incargted by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) (ii) of

CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fhe year ended December 31, 2002 (File No. 001-4)778
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMarch 27, 2003).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanfdcegoing plan and dated as of February 25, 208#red into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and its officers (incargted by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) (iii) of

CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fhe year ended December 31, 2003 (File No. 001-4)778
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioivarch 12, 2004).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of Februar®0a3, entered
into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executivéoefs (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10f1 o
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the period ended March 31, 2003 (File No. 00783
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMay 14, 2003).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarihe foregoing plan and dated as of February @84 2entered
into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executivéoeirs (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2¢) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the period ended March 31, 2004 (File No. 00R€g)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioivay 7, 2004).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuantdcefjoing plan and dated as of February 17, 20@Brexhinto
between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executive offecéncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(e)afv)
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fhe year ended December 31, 2004 (File No. 0003026
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMarch 16, 2005).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of Februar@5, entered
into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executivéoeirs (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10)Z(&) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fhe period ended December 31, 2004 (File No. BI®50)
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMarch 16, 2005).

Amended and Restated 2005 Directors Stock Btaamended and restated through February 23,(R@dporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) of CenturyLink, IncAsinual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwer 31, 2009
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities &xthange Commission on March 1, 2010).

(i)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan, entered into between CentinkjLinc.
and each of its outside directors as of May 1352@fcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K éMo. 000-50260) filed with the Securities and Eade
Commission on May 13, 2005).
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(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(Vi)

(Vi)

(viii)

(ix)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan, entered into between Cenhiaky Inc.
and each of its outside directors as of May 1262@tcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the period ended June 30, 2006 (File No. 00188y7
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioagust 3, 2006).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursutanthe foregoing plan, entered into between Ceghiok, Inc.
and each of its outside directors as of May 11,72@tcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(fi) @f
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fhe period ended December 31, 2008 (File No. @0284)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan, entered into between Cehinky Inc.
and each of its outside directors as of May 9, 20@&rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 () @f
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K the period ended December 31, 2008 (File No. @0484)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiotrebruary 27, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarihe foregoing plan and dated as of May 8, 206&red into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outsitleadors on such date who remained on the Boalowioig

July 1, 2009 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi2(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Reportieorm 10-
Q for the period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. @D284) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion
on August 7, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of May 8, 2ed®red into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outsideadors who retired on July 1, 2009 (incorporéatgd
reference to Exhibit 10.2(c) of CenturyLink, Indsiarterly Report on Form 1Q-for the period ended June
2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of July 2, 2@@¢ered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outsitleadors named to the Board on July 1, 2009 (incated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(d) of CenturyLink, Ind@siarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with tlee&ities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009

Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tofitregoing plan and dated as of July 2, 2009, edterto between
CenturyLink, Inc. and William A. Owens in paymerit\r. Owens' 2009 supplemental chairman's fees
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(e) oht@eyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fthe
period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-0778&)l filith the Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 7, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of May 21, 2eh€red into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and seven of its outsiilectors on such date (incorporated by reference t
Exhibit 10.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2616 (
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exg@@ommission on August 6, 2010).

f. Amended and Restated 2005 Management Ince@timepensation Plan, as amended and restated thFalogghary 23,
2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(@EenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 104 the year
ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) fiteH the Securities and Exchange Commission on Mar@010).

()

(ii)

(iif)

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant te thregoing plan, entered into between CenturyLin&, and
certain officers and key employees at various dsitee May 12, 2005 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q for the period ended September 3052
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities &xthange Commission on November 9, 2005).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan, entered into between Cenhiaky Inc.
and certain officers and key employees at vari@iegisince May 12, 2005 (incorporated by referémce
Exhibit 10.3 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q for the period ended September 3052
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on November 9, 2005).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuantte foregoing plan and dated as of February 216 286tered
into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executivioei's (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10)Z{i) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K the year ended December 31, 2005 (File No. 001-4)778
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiotMarch 16, 2006).
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(iv) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of Februarn2@Q6, entered
into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executivBoeirs (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10)Z{g) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fhe year ended December 31, 2005 (File No. 001-4)778
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMarch 16, 2006).

(v) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant @ fitregoing plan and dated as of February 26, 28®¢éred
into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executivioefs (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10f1 o
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the period ended March 31, 2007 (File No. 00783
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMay 9, 2007).

(vi) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of Februan2@87, entered
into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executivioefs (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10f2 o
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the period ended March 31, 2007 (File No. 00783
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMay 9, 2007).

(vii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of Februan2@Q8, entered
into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executivioefs (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10f2 o
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the period ended March 31, 2008 (File No. 00783
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioivay 7, 2008).

(viii)  Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuianthe foregoing plan and dated as of Februan2069
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(g) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fbe
period ended March 31, 2009 (File No. 001-0778éyfivith the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 1, 2009).

(ix) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of March 8, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foetheriod
ended March 31, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filedwmite Securities and Exchange Commission on May 7,
2010).

g. Amended and Restated CenturyLink Legacy EmBaé@ Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restatedgh
February 23, 2010 (incorporated by reference tatiixh0.2(h) of CenturyLink, Inc.’s Annual Repom ¢orm 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-4)/f8d with the Securities and Exchange Commissin March
1, 2010).

0] Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of May 21, 28méred into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and four of its outsidecktors as of such date (incorporated by referémce
Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2616 (
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exag@@ommission on August 6, 2010).

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of May 21, 2ehéred into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and William A. Owens ayment of Mr. Owens' 2010 supplemental chairman's
fees (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8ehturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the
period ended June 30, 2010 (File No. 001-0778&)l filith the Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 6, 2010).

(iii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, datedaSeptember 7, 2010, entered into between CedrtkyInc.
and Dennis G. Huber (incorporated by referencextulit 10.16 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon
Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2616 KNo. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on November 5, 2010).

h. Form of Retention Award Agreement, pursuarth®equity incentive plans of CenturyLink or Embargl dated as of
August 23, 2010, entered into between CenturyLliné, and certain officers and key employees asicl slate
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foetheriod ended
September 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed wlith Securities and Exchange Commission on Novemiz010).

i CenturyLink 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (incorpted by reference to Appendix B of CenturyLinkg.le Proxy
Statement for its 2011 Annual Meeting of SharehadEile No. 001-07784) filed with the SecuritiegldExchange
Commission on April 6, 2011).

0] Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for exegeitbfficers used in 2011 and 2012 (incorporatedeligrence to
Exhibit 10.2(a) (i) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s QuartgiReport on Form 10-Q for the period ended JuneG01
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dexthange Commission on August 9, 2011).
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10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for nonfragement directors used since 2011 (incorporatadfeyence
to Exhibit 10.2(a) (ii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended BMe2011
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities exthange Commission on August 9, 2011).

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement étecutive officers used since May 2013.

Key Employee Incentive Compensation Plarediats of January 1, 1984, as amended and restatédNavember 16, 1995
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(f) oin@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foethiear ended

December 31, 1995 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on Marci9%5) and
amendment thereto dated as of November 21, 1966rfiorated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(f) of Ceyltink, Inc.'s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembef 826 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Secustend Exchange
Commission on March 17, 1997), amendment thereteddes of February 25, 1997 (incorporated by refardo Exhibit 10.2 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the period ended March 31, 1997 (File No. 00783 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 8, 1987gndment thereto dated as of April 25, 2001 (paated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly pat on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 3D12(File No. 001-07784)
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMay 15, 2001), amendment thereto dated as of Apri2000
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3(a) oht@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foetlear ended

December 31, 2001 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on MarcRa®) and
amendment thereto dated as of February 27, 200@rfiorated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Centimid_Inc.'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June G07 ZFile No. 001-07784) filed with the Securitasd Exchange
Commission on August 8, 2007).

Supplemental Dollars & Sense Plan, 2008 Rewtnt, effective January 1, 2008, (incorporatedeigrence to Exhibit 10.3(c)
of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10t the year ended December 31, 2007 (File No. G0/B0) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Februar@®) and amendment thereto dated as of Octob&0B8, (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3(c) of CenturyLink, I'scAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year endeddnber 31, 2008 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exad@@ommission on March 27, 2009) and amendmergtihelated as of
December 27, 2010 (incorporated by reference tolixd0.4 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report onrfnh 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filigd the Securities and Exchange Commission on Mar@011).

Supplemental Defined Benefit Pension Pldiecife as of January 1, 2012 (incorporated byrezfee to Exhibit 10.5 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K the year ended December 31, 2011 (File No. 001-4)7f&d with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Februar@R?).

Amended and Restated Salary Continuatioraefiilisy) Plan for Officers, dated as of November 2891 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 of CenturyLink, Inc.'arual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Deegrth, 1991).

2010 Executive Officer Short-Term Incentivedgam (incorporated by reference to Appendix EehturyLink, Inc.'s 2010
Proxy Statement on Form 14A (File No. 001-0778ifiwith the Securities and Exchange CommissioAnil 7, 2010).

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered inétween CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its dirests of July 1, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File Na01-07784) with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 1, 2009)

Form of Indemnification Agreement enterdd lpetween CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its officas of July 1, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foetheriod ended June 30,
2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009).

Change of Control Agreement, effective Janta2011, by and between Glen F. Post, Il andt@gLink, Inc. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of CenturyLink, IscAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year endeddbdwer 31, 2010 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exg@@ommission on March 1, 2011).

Form of Change of Control Agreement, effectlanuary 1, 2011 between CenturyLink, Inc. amth @f its other executive
officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit Z0df CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10 the year ended
December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed wite Securities and Exchange Commission on Marc@11)?

Amended and Restated CenturyLink, Inc. Bdrifésinsurance Plan for Executive Officers, dasedof April 3, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foetperiod ended March 31,
2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on May 7, 2008) and Birg¢tndment thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of @eyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fhetperiod ended
September 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed wlith Securities and Exchange Commission on Noveiz010).
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10.14

10.15

Certain Material Agreements and Plans of &opkCorporation.

a.

Embarqg Corporation 2006 Equity Incentive Pémamended and restated (incorporated by refeterieéhibit 99.1 of
the Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed byt@shink, Inc. (File No. 001-07784) with the Sedies and
Exchange Commission on July 1, 2009).

Form of 2007 Award Agreement for executive adfis of Embarg Corporation (incorporated by refeecio
Exhibit 10.1 of Embarq Corporation's Current Report~orm 8-K (File No. 001-32372) filed with thecseties and
Exchange Commission on February 27, 2007).

Form of 2008 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agresmn(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 ofliarg
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K (File R61-32372) filed with the Securities and Exchangen@ission on
March 4, 2008).

Form of 2009 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agresm(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 oftfarg
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K (File R081-32732) filed with the Securities and Exchangen@ission on
March 5, 2009).

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (incorpedsby reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Embarg Corgoras Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32372) filed witte Securities and Exchange Commission on Mar@0@8g).

Amendment to Outstanding RSUs granted in 20@¥ 2008 under the Embarqg Corporation 2006 Equitertive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of Engb@orporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for ylear ended
December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-32372) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on Febrigarg0n9).

Form of 2006 Award Agreement, entered into leevEmbarqg Corporation and Richard A. Gephardofparated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Embarqg Corporationsrént Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32372)dileith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 162@8 amended by the amendment thereto datedJase26,
2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 @hienturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on FormQQdor the periot
ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on Auguzd(9).

Amended and Restated Executive SeveranceiRtdnding Form of Participation Agreement enteneit ibetween
Embarqg Corporation and William E. Cheek (incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Embarq Corporas
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period enSegdtember 30, 2008 (File No. 001-32372) filed wlith Securities
and Exchange Commission on October 30, 2008).

Embarg Supplemental Executive Retirement Plaramended and restated as of January 1, 2009garnated by
reference to Exhibit 10.27 of Embarg Corporatigrisiual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmamn31, 2008
(File No. 001-32372) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on February 13, 2009), amentiinereto
dated as of December 27, 2010 (incorporated byaeée to Exhibit 10.14(0) of CenturyLink, Inc.'siral Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 201@ (Rd. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Earaie
Commission on March 1, 2011) and second amendrersgto as of dated as of November 15, 2011 (incated by
reference to Exhibit 10.14(k) of CenturyLink, liscAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year endeddbdwer 31, 2011
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on February 28, 2012).

Certain Material Agreements and Plans of @@emmunications International Inc. or Savvis, Inc

a.

Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restatedrporated by reference to Annex A of Qwest Camitations
International Inc.'s Proxy Statement for the 200ihdal Meeting of Stockholders (File No. 001-155filéd with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 297200
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Exhibit
Number

Description

12*
31.1*
31.2*

32*

101*

b. Forms of restricted stock, performance shadeagtion agreements used under Equity Incentive, Ris amended and
restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 18.Qwest Communications International Inc.'s Cuirfeeport on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-15577) filed with the Sedig$ and Exchange Commission on October 24, 200&ipk 10.2
of Qwest Communication International Inc.'s AnnRaport on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembelBa5 (File
No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Exad@@ommission on February 16, 2006; Exhibit 10.9wkst
Communication International Inc.'s Quarterly RemortForm 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2¢0ke (No. 001-
15577) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on May 3, 2006; Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest Comneation
International Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fioe year ended December 31, 2006 (File No. 00Z-Zpfled with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Feb&&907; Exhibit 10.3 of Qwest Communication
International Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-KgMilo. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and lkxege
Commission on September 15, 2008; Exhibit 10.2wé&§ Communication International Inc.'s QuartergpBrt on
Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2009 (Rite 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Exu
Commission on April 30, 2009; and Exhibit 10.2 af#€¥t Communication International Inc.'s Annual Répo
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 201@ (Rd. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Earaie
Commission on February 15, 2011).

C. Deferred Compensation Plan for Nonemployeedirs, as amended and restated, Amendment to Bdferr
Compensation Plan for Nonemployee Directors (incoafed by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest Comications
International Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-KlgMlo. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Eaege
Commission on December 16, 2005 and Exhibit 10@west Communication International Inc.'s Quart&gport on
Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2B0& Ko. 001-15577) filed with the Securities arnctBange
Commission on October 29, 2008) and Amendment Rb12l to Deferred Compensation Plan for Nonemployee
Directors (incorporated by reference to ExhibitlBjc) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report for thear ended
December 31, 2011 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on Febri&r(.2).

d. Qwest Nonqualified Pension Plan (incorporatedeierence to Exhibit 10.9 of Qwest Communications
International Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fioe year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 00Z-Zpfled with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Febd&rg010).

e. SAVVIS, Inc. Amended and Restated 2003 Incenfiempensation Plan (incorporated by referencelibi 10.4 of
SAWVIS, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foe theriod ended March 31, 2006 (File No. @¥B75) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 5, 2@GG63mended by Amendment No. 1 (incorporated lereate to
Exhibit 10.6 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Annual Report on Rod0-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 (Fde®00-
29375) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on February 26, 2007); Amendment No. 2 (ipoated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Curré&gport on Form 8-K (File No. 000-29375) filed witte Securities
and Exchange Commission on May 15, 2007); AmendiNenB (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10£3 o
SAVVIS, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foe theriod ended June 30, 2007 (File No. 000-2931&s) With the
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 31,

2007); Amendment No. 4 (incorporated by referedéxhibit 10.2 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Current Report Barm 8-K
(File No. 000-29375) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on May 22, 2009); and AmendiNen6
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of SAW®YInc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. G8B75) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Ry2009).

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Certification of the Chief Executive Officef CenturyLink, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 af arbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officef CenturyLink, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 o Barbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officené Chief Financial Officer of CenturyLink, Inc. puant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Financial statements from the Quarterly ReparForm 10-Q of CenturyLink, Inc. for the periedded June 30, 2014, formatted
in XBRL: (i) the Consolidated Statements of Opemnagi, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Comprefiedacome, (iii) the
Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iv) the Consolidatatements of Cash Flows, (v) the ConsolidateceBtants of Stockholders'
Equity and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Finan&ig@tements.

Note:

Exhibit filed herewith.

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines gmatt@rs of our Board of Director Committees areted on our website at
www.centurylink.com.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized on August 7, 2014 .

CENTURYLINK, INC.
/s DAVID D. COLE

By: David D. Cole
Executive Vice President, Controller and OperationsSupport

(Chief Accounting Officer)
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
CALCULATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

(UNAUDITED)

Exhibit 12

Six Months
Ended June
30, Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)
Income before income taxes anc
cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle $ 654 224 1,25( 94¢ 1,531 813
Less: income from equity investee (11 (24) (15) (13 (16) (29
Add: estimated fixed charges 752 1,48¢ 1,50¢ 1,22 61= 41¢€
Add: estimated amortization of
capitalized interest 8 16 15 12 2 2
Add: distributed income of equit
investee 15 14 12 14 16 20
Less: preferred dividends — — — — — —
Less: interest capitalized (22 (42) (43 (25) 13 (3)
Total earnings available for fixed
charges $ 1,39 1,67¢ 2,727 2,15¢ 2,13t 1,231
Estimate of interest factor on
rentals $ 74 147 14z 12€ 57 48
Interest expense, including
amortization of premiums,
discounts and debt issuance costs 65€ 1,29¢ 1,31¢ 1,07z 54t 367
Interest capitalized 22 41 43 25 13 3
Total fixed charges $ 752 1,48¢ 1,504 1,22% 61° 41¢
Ratio of earnings to fixed charge 1.8€ 1.12 1.81 1.77 3.41% 2.94



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Glen F. Post, Ill, Chief Executive Officer anceBident, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Foi®rQ of CenturyLink, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ort@émstate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsi under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the

period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

b) designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfagia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraiigslosure controls and procedures and presentusi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conintsprocedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on

such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegint's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeatf, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer andalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's Board of Directors

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssahe design or operation of internal contradiofimancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a signifiodamin the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 7, 2014 /s GLEN F. POST, llI

Glen F. Post, Il
Chief Executive Officer and President




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, R. Stewart Ewing, Jr., Executive Vice Presidé&tijef Financial Officer and Assistant Secretasgytify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Foi®rQ of CenturyLink, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the

period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report ishg prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financggarting, or caused such internal control overrfagia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraiig&osure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on

such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegint's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeatf, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer andalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's Board of Directors

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssahe design or operation of internal contradiofimancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;

and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

/sl R. STEWART EWING, JR.

R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Assistant

Secretary

Date: August 7, 2014




Exhibit 32

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135@&s Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Each of the undersigned, acting in his capacithasChief Executive Officer or Chief Financial @#r of CenturyLink, Inc.
("CenturyLink"), certifies that, to his knowledgée Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartetesl June 30, 2014 of CenturyLink fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(ahefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934 and that tf@nimation contained in the Form 10-Q
fairly presents, in all material respects, the fficial condition and results of operations of Ceyitink as of the dates and for the periods
covered by such report.

A signed original of this statement has been predith CenturyLink and will be retained by Centuniiand furnished to the Securities
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Date: August 7, 2014

/sl GLEN F. POST, Il /sl R. STEWART EWING, JR.
Glen F. Post, llI R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vice President, Chief

President Financial Officer and Assistant

Secretary



